Applicant user guide to ERM

Ethical Review Manager (ERM)

Coordinating Office for Clinical Trial Research

Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Gloss	ary		5
1	Introc	duction	6
	1.1	About ERM	6
		Who uses Ethical Review Manager (ERM)	6
	1.2	Create an account	6
		Forgotten password	7
		Changing password	7
		Changing personal details	8
	1.3	ERM forms	8
		Main forms	9
		Sub-forms for initial application	9
		Sub-forms for post approval	9
		Sub-forms for post authorisation	10
2	Work	Area	11
	2.1	Actions	11
	2.2	General	12
	2.3	Folders	12
	2.4	Projects	12
	2.5	Actionspane	13
	2.6	Form status bar	14
	2.7	Tab functions	15
	2.8	ERM Reference Numbers	18
3	The	HREA form	20
	3.1	Create a HREA	20
	3.2	Complete the HREA	20
	3.3	Import a HREA	21
	3.4	Upload documents	21
	3.5	Assign access to the HREA	23
	3.6	Applying signatures	26
4	Subm	nission and review process – HREA	32
	4.1	Submission	32
	4.2	Responding to a query from the Research Office	33
	4.3	Ethics Committee review request	36
5	Natio	nal Mutual Acceptance (NMA) applications	39
6	Victo	rian Specific Module	40
7	Victo	rian Low and Negligible Risk application (LNR VIC)	42
	7.1	Create a LNR VIC form	42
	7.2	Complete the LNR VIC	43



	7.3	Upload documents	43
	7.4	Assign access to the LNR VIC form	43
	7.5	Applying signatures	44
8	Subn	nission and review process - LNR VIC	47
	8.1	Submission	47
	8.2	Responding to a query from the Research Office	48
	8.3	Ethics Committee review request	50
9	Site S	Specific Assessment (SSA)	53
	9.1	Create a SSA	53
	9.2	Creating SSAs for sites	54
	9.3	Upload documents	56
	9.4	Assign access to the SSA form	57
	9.5	Applying signatures	58
10	Subn	nission and review process – SSA form	62
	10.1	Submission	62
	10.2	Responding to a query from the Research Office	63
	10.3	RGO review request	66
11	Minir	mal Dataset Form (MDF)	69
12	Lega	cy Application Replacement Form (LARF)	72
13	Qual	ity Assurance (QA) Application Form	74
14	Post	Approval	75
	14.1	Create a sub-form	76
	14.2	Complete a sub-form - Ethics Amendment request	77
	14.3	Allowing others to access post approval forms	78
	14.4	Applying signatures	79
	14.5	Submission and review	80
15	Post	Authorisation	81
	15.1	Create a sub-form	81
	15.2	Complete a sub-form – Site Governance Amendment request	82
	15.3	Allowing others to access post authorisation forms	83
	15.4	Applying signatures	84
	15.5	Submission and review	85
16	Othe	r ERM features	86
	16.1	Project update	86
	16.2	Cancel a signature	88
	16.3	Changing jobs	88
	16.4	Transfer a project	89
	16.5	Transfer a sub-form	91
	16.6	Duplicate a project	91
	16.7	Duplicate a form	92



	16.8	Delete a form	94
	16.9	Edit Roles and Share	94
	16.10	Contacts	96
	16.11	Correspondence	97
	16.12	Archived documents	99
	16.13	Folders	100
	16.14	Submission to non ERM Research Offices	102
17	Help		103
Appen	dix 1: A	application process flow	104
Appen	Appendix 2:Post approval & post authorisation chart		

106



Glossary

CPI Coordinating Principal Investigator. Overall responsibility for the research project and submits the project for scientific and ethical review CRO Contract Research Organisation (may act as local sponsor for non-Australian entities). Clinical Trial Approval scheme (scheme's previous name Clinical Trial Exemption (CTX)) CTA CTN Clinical Trial Notification scheme Clinical Trial Research Agreement **CTRA** CV Curriculum Vitae FDA Food and Drug Administration (in USA) GCP Good Clinical Practice HREA Human Research Ethics Application HREC Human Research Ethics Committee that has been certified under the NHMRC National Certification Scheme, and be a Certified Reviewing HREC under the NMA scheme IB Investigator Brochure ICH-GCP International Conference on Harmonisation – Good Clinical Practice LARF Legacy Application Replacement Form LNR Low and Negligible Risk application MDF Minimal Dataset Form NHMRC National Health Medical Research Council NMA National Mutual Acceptance (NMA) is a system for mutual acceptance of scientific and ethical review of multi-centre human research projects conducted in publicly funded health services across jurisdictions. Australian Capital Territory, New South Wales, Northern Territory, Queensland, South Australia, Tasmania, Victoria and Western Australia participate in NMA ΡI Principal Investigator. Responsible for the project at a site PICF Participant Information Consent Form QA Quality Assurance application RGO Research Governance Officer SSA Site Specific Assessment VSM Victorian Specific Module



1 Introduction

Ethical Review Manager (ERM): https://au.forms.ethicalreviewmanager.com

1.1 About ERM

ERM is a paperless information management system for completion, submission and storage of:

- ethics applications
- research governance/site specific assessment (SSA) applications
- post-approval (ethics) forms
- post-authorisation (research governance) forms

ERM is used by research applicants (researchers, trial coordinators, sponsors, contract research organisations etc.). It is also used by research office administrators and ethics committee members to manage the review, processing and approval/authorisation of all applications.

The communication features of ERM ensure that the entire life-cycle of a research project can be managed within the ERM system.

ERM is used for all ethics and research governance/SSA applications to public health organisations in Victoria and Queensland. Some private health organisations also use ERM – for details, consult the organisation's research office.

Who uses Ethical Review Manager (ERM)

ERM can be used by anyone involved with an ethics or research governance/SSA application, including:

- Coordinating Principal Investigator (or delegate/s)
- Principal Investigators (or delegate/s)
- Sponsors/Contract Research Organisations/Trial Coordinators

ERM is a secure password-protected website. Each user must create their own private account.

1.2 Create an account

Go to the ERM website https://au.forms.ethicalreviewmanager.com

To Log in:

Note: Online Forms was the precursor to ERM. Online Forms account holders may already have an ERM account and can use the same login details.

For users with no previous Online Forms account:

- 1. Select New User
- 2. Enter the information and agree to the Terms and Conditions.
- 3. Click Register and a verification email is sent to the entered email address
- 4. Select the activation link in the email
- 5. Click Log in
- 6. Log in with your email address and password



Log in

ERM Applications Help +		Log in
	ethics ^m	
	Mater JICTORIA	
	Queersland Government Exceptional People. Exceptional Care. Store Government	
	ERM Applications	
	Log in	
	Email Address	
	Password	
	Password	
	Log in New User Forgotten Password	

- 1. Enter your email address and password
- 2. Select Log in

Forgotten password

When logging in as an applicant, if the password entered is incorrect an error message will appear

- Select Forgotten Password
- Enter the email address of the account to be signed into
- Select Reset Password
- An email will be sent with a link to change the password. Enter the new password and select **Reset** Password
- A Message box will be displayed confirming the password change
- Select the link to return to the login page _

Your password has successfully been reset, please click here to return to login page.

Changing password

- Log in with usual account details
- Select the account name located on top-right of browser

ERM Applications				Beta Test Mode	Ms Catherine Farrington +
Work Area 🐱	Work Are	a			Change Password Personal Details
Home 24	General				Logout
Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared	
Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	24	0	0	23	

Select Change Password



Forgotten Password
A link to reset your password will be emailed to you
Email address
Reset Password

•	A Change Password message box will be displayed
	Enter old and new password

• Select Change Password

Change Password

Confirm New Password

Change Personal Details

New Password

Title Ms

First Name

🗆 Unavai

Posto

Changing personal details

- Log in with usual account details
- Select the account name located on top-right of browser
- Select Personal Details
- A Change Personal Details message box will be displayed Enter changes to personal details
- Select Change Details

Log out

ERM Applicati	ERM Applications Home Contacts Help - Prof Major Researcher -				
Work Area 🐱	Work Area	Change Password Personal Details			
Home U Notifications	General	Logout			
Actions					

- Select arrow at right edge of account name
- Select Logout

1.3 ERM forms

Actions		HREA 31			
Project	Duplicate Form	Project Tree ✔			
Delete Form	Share	● <u>HREA 31</u>	→ Project	n Form	
Roles	Transfer Form		mendment Request VIC - 0 Specific Assessment (SSA) 9 Governance Amendment F	VIC - Administrator Use Only	m Sub form
Completeness Check	Submit		Governance Amendment	<u>kequest -</u>	Sub form
2	8	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified
Refresh	NMA Project	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	01/04/2021 15:03

- ERM is based on forms. The applicant creates a project and a main form simultaneously
- From the main form, the applicant can create sub-forms e.g. Ethics Amendment Request, SSA form.



- From some sub-forms (SSA and LNR VIC SSA) further sub-forms can be created e.g. Site Governance Amendment Request, Site Progress Report and Site Notification Form
- A summary of the forms available in ERM is displayed in the tables below.

Main forms

There is only one main form for each project.

Form	Description
Human Research Ethics Application (HREA)	Ethics application form
Victorian Low/Negligible Risk Application Form (LNR VIC)	Ethics application form for low or negligible risk research in Victoria; used at selected organisations only
Quality Assurance Application Form (QA)	Application form for quality assurance or clinical audit in Victoria; used at selected organisations only
Minimal Dataset Form (MDF)	Proxy for an ethics application form; used when the ethics review was performed in a state/territory that does not use ERM; allows creation of SSA form(s) in ERM
Legacy Application Replacement Form (LARF)	Proxy for an ethics application form; used when an old project (approved before July 2018) is not in ERM nor reviewed under NMA; allows creation of Subform(s) in ERM for Victoria only

Sub-forms for initial application

Form	Description
Victorian Specific Module (VSM)	Required as part of the ethics application when the HREA is utilised and the research project involves a site in Victoria; addresses Victorian legislation
Site Specific Assessment (SSA)	Research governance application form; one SSA is required for each site participating in a research project
Victorian Low/Negligible Risk Site Specific Assessment (LNR VIC SSA)	Research governance application form; one LNR VIC SSA is required for each site participating in a research project

Sub-forms for post approval

Form	Description
Ethics Amendment Request	Request ethical approval for a change to the design or conduct of a research project e.g. the protocol, PICF or change to personnel
Safety Report	Report a safety event to the reviewing ethics committee
Annual Safety Report	Report to the reviewing ethics committee on the safety profile of an interventional clinical trial
Serious Breach Report	Report a serious breach to the reviewing ethics committee



Suspected Breach Report	Report a suspected breach to the reviewing ethics committee
Project Progress Report	Report to the reviewing ethics committee on the progress of a research project (at least annually, may be more frequent if requested)
Site Closure Report	For a multi-site project, report the closure of one participating site to the reviewing ethics committee
Project Final Report	Report to the reviewing ethics committee on the progress of a research project at the time of its completion
Project Notification Form	Report to the reviewing ethics committee on any matters for which there is not a specific post-approval form available

Sub-forms for post authorisation

Form	Description
Complaint Report	Report a research project complaint to the site's research governance officer
Non-serious Breach/Deviation Report	Report a non-serious breach/deviation to the site's research governance officer
Site Audit Report	If requested by the site's research governance officer, provide a self-audit of the research project
Site Notification Form	Report to the site's research governance officer on any matters for which there is not a specific post-approval form available
Site Progress Report	Report to the site's research governance on the site's progress of a research project (at least annually, may be more frequent if requested)
Site Governance Amendment Request	Notify the research governance officer of either an amendment that has been approved by the reviewing ethics committee or a governance-only amendment that does not require ethical approval



2 Work Area

The Work Area is the ERM home page. The left side of the screen displays the Actions pane with action buttons below. The right of the screen displays an overview of projects in the user's ERM account.

ERM Application	1S Home Contacts	Help 👻					Prof Major Rese	earcher 👻	
Work Area 🗸	Work Are	а							8
Home Notifications	General								
Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers		Shared				
Create Folder Delete Folder	5	1		1		17			
Create Project	Folders								
Duplicate Project	19								
	Projects								
	Search Projects								
	Project Title			¢	Project ID	Owner	♦ Date Created ♦	Date Modified [♦]	Transfer Status
	Project Title				44245	Prof Major Researcher	28/07/2018 10:45	28/07/2018 10:45	

2.1 Actions

There are six action buttons under the Actions pane



Create a new project



Delete a project (only possible if the main form has not been submitted via ERM)



Create a bespoke folder for storage of projects



Delete a folder (only possible if the folder is empty)



Permanently transfer a project to a colleague



Duplicate an existing project





2.2 General

There are four tiles in the **General** section. If the tile displays a red number, it may contain items that require attention.



Notifications	-	Contain messages that are sent to the user from the Research Office:
		and the second second for the former of the second form and the second form

- o queries or request for information regarding an application
- Approval letters
- Messages automatically generated by ERM e.g. form updates
- Messages from other research team members/collaborators
 - \circ $\$ the user has been assigned a level of access to a form
 - a change in the access status of a form
 - \circ an electronic signature has been requested
 - o a form has been signed electronically by the signatory
- Signature Contain requests from colleagues to digitally sign an application i.e. a request for an electronic signature
- Transfers Contain requests to transfer a project to another ERM user
- Shared Contain information about forms and level of access another ERM user has shared with you

2.3 Folders

Displays bespoke folders for storage of projects.

2.4 Projects

- Projects in the user's ERM account are listed under Projects
- To access a project begin typing the project's title in the **Search Projects** text box. Select a project from the list displayed. User can also search for projects in search section

Work Area Work Area	Work Area _{General}						
Actions ~	Notifications Sig	gnatures Tra	ansfers	Shared 7			
Delete Project Duplicate Project Transfer	Folders Old Applications		Search	Projects			
	Projects Bearch Projects Project Title LNR December December Holidays	 Project ID 50186 49968 	Owner Ms Catherine Ms Catherine		Date Created 24/12/2018 10:02 13/12/2018 14:22	 Date Modified 24/12/2018 13:56 18/12/2018 17:39 	0 Transfer Status

• The project will open under a Project Tree



Act	ions	HREA 31			
Project	Duplicate Form	Project Tree 🗸		Project Tree	
O Delete Form	Share				
Roles	Transfer Form		ndment Request V cific Assessment (<u>/IC - 01/04/2021</u> SSA) VIC - Administrator Use Or	<u></u>
Completeness Check	Submit	Site Go	overnance Amend	ment Request -	
	S	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified
Refresh	NMA Project	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	01/04/2021 15:03

2.5 Actions pane

There are eleven possible action buttons available under the Action pane on the left side of the screen. The actions are listed below:



Go to the Project overview



Create a Sub-form from the main form e.g. SSA



Enable collaborators to view, edit and manage the form



Enable collaborators to view, edit and manage the form



Identify mandatory questions within the form that require information to be entered



Submit the application to the reviewing organisation. Note: the reviewing organisation must be selected **within the form**, in order for the submission to be directed to that organisation.



Record that the project falls within the National Mutual Acceptance (NMA) scheme. Information on NMA is available on the <u>Clinical Trials and Research</u> website.



8

Generate a PDF of the form for printing or save as soft copy





Refresh



Communicate directly with the Research Office selected as the reviewing organisation within the form **only after** the form has been submitted



Import a HREA created on a different website e.g. hrea.gov.au, as an Xml file in to ERM

2.6 Form status bar

The Form status bar has five columns which displays the current activity of the form



Action Required - if any actions are required by the user

Action Required	Explanation
Yes	To run a 'Completeness Check' to identify any incomplete sections To identify whether comments have been added by the reviewing Research Office if returned for resubmission or if there's any reason preventing the form from being submitted.
No	The form is ready to be submitted or has been submitted.

Status - indicates the status of the form

Status	Explanation
Not Submitted	The application is still in progress
Submitted	The application has been submitted to the reviewing organisation
Recalled	The application has been recalled by the user to make changes and is only possible if the reviewing organisation has not started processing the application
Queried	The application has been queried by the Research Office for further clarification or edits
Archived	If there is a resubmission of an application, the previous submission (v1) becomes 'archived' and is no longer the most recent submission. The most recent submission becomes (v2)
Validated	The application is ready for review by the ethics committee
Information Requested	The ethics committee has requested further clarification or information
Approved	The application has been approved by the reviewing ethics committee



Review Reference - unique identification code

This unique identification code for a form is generated when an application is submitted in ERM. It is composed of six parts -1 6

(5) 2 3 4

e.g. HREC/74950/VICTEST-2021-257683(v1)

	Component	Description	Examples
1	Application type	Identifies the type of application form	HREA, LNR VIC, MDF, SSA
2	ERM Project ID	The unique identification number for the research project	74950
3	Organisation/hospital code	The organisation/hospital to which this form was submitted	Austin, RCH, VICTEST
4	Year	Year of submission	Can change when a new form version is submitted in the following year
5	Submission number	System identifier for the particular submission of this form	257683
6	Version number	Version number to track submission history	v1 to v2 to v3

Application Type - Identifies the type of application/form submitted

- Ethics Application (the HREA) •
- LNR application •
- Quality Assurance .
- SSA

Date Modified - Displays the most recent date a form was updated

NMA - Whether the research project/application will be reviewed under National Mutual Acceptance (NMA) scheme or not.

2.7 Tab functions

There are seven tabs that cover specific aspects of the application and its submission process

Act	ions	Project Tree 🗸				74
Project	Create Subform	HREA 31 HREA				
Share	Roles	Site	Amendment Request VIC - 01/6 Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC e Governance Amendment Re	C - Administrator Use Only		
Completeness Check	s Submit	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Refresh	S NMA Project	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	31/03/2021 14:05	Project is for NMA
View as PDF	Correspond	Navigation	Documents Signature	os Collaborators	Submissions Correspondence	History



Tab	Explanation
Navigation	Application form is completed under Navigation tab
Documents	Displays all supporting documents that have been uploaded within the form Note: Documents are not uploaded under this tab; documents are uploaded within the relevant section of the form
Signatures	Shows a history of all digital signatures that have been applied to the form, and all signature requests
Collaborators	Displays members of the research team and their level of access to the form
Submissions	Shows a history of all submissions that have been made via ERM
Correspondence	Displays a record of the communication between the user and the reviewing organisation's research office
History	An auditable history of actions; if the form has been submitted, an archived version of the submission is available here.

Each tab is described below:

Navigation

- The Navigation tab displays the sections and associated questions within the form. Sections will become accessible or inaccessible depending on the information relative to the application
- Questions are hyperlinked (in blue) for quick navigation to the relevant section within the form

Documents

- The Documents tab displays current supporting documents that have been uploaded into a form. The details displayed indicate the document type, name, file name, version date and number
- A column of checkboxes allows documents to be selected or deselected
- Select any combination of documents to either open as a PDF in a new browser using the **View Selected** button or download as a ZIP file using the **Download Selected** button
- A Search Bar is available to filter documents and find specific documents types e.g. PICFs

~	Actions									69893
roject (S	Create Subform		Tree 🗸							
		Action	Required	Status	Review Reference		Date Modified	NMA		
		No		Approved	HREC/69893/VICTEST-2020-2	37181(v2)	15/10/2020 14:31	Project is not	for NMA	
		-	uments		- Search Bar					
		Search	Document		- Search Bar	 Document Name 	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size
		-	Document	dule (VSM)	 Search Bar 		File Name VSM pdf	Version Date 15/10/2020	Version t	
		Search	Document Type	dule (VSM)	 Search Bar 	Document Name				203.3 P
		Search	Document Type Victorian specific mod	dule (VSM)	 Search Bar 	Document Name VSM	VSM.pdf	15/10/2020	1	203.3 M 12.4 KE
		Search	Type Victorian specific mod Protocol		 Search Bar 	Document Name VSM Protocol	VSM.pdf Protocol.docx	15/10/2020 13/10/2020	1 1.3	 Size 203.3 K 12.4 KE 11.4 KB 12.5 KE
		Search	Document Type Victorian specific mod Protocol Questionnaire Participant information			Document Name VSM Protocol Questionnaire	VSM.pdf Protocol.docx Questionnaire.docx	15/10/2020 13/10/2020 12/10/2020	1 1.3 1b	203.3 M 12.4 KE 11.4 KE 12.5 KE
		Search	Document Type Victorian specific mod Protocol Questionnaire Participant information	n and consent form		Document Name VSM Protocol Questionnaire PICF v2	VSM.pdf Protocol.docx Questionnaire.docx PICF v2.docx	15/10/2020 13/10/2020 12/10/2020 15/10/2020	1 1.3 1b 2	203.3 M 12.4 KE 11.4 KE



Signature

- Displays a history of all digital signatures that have been applied to the form and shows all signature requests
- Signatures are not applied in this tab. To sign a form, use the Navigation tab to access the relevant section for signature requests

Acti	ons	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	69913
Project	Create Subform	Signatures							
<	2+	Туре			Signatory E	nail		Signed Date	Validity
Share	Roles	Co-ordinating Princi	pal Investigator/Resea	archer	major.resear	cher101010@gmail.	com	17/10/2020 16:11	Valid
	+	Co-ordinating Princi	pal Investigator/Resea	archer	major.resear	cher101010@gmail.	com	17/10/2020 15:38	Invalid
	Submit	Co-ordinating Princi	pal Investigator/Resea	archer	major.resear	cher101010@gmail.	com	17/10/2020 15:11	Invalid
Check		Co-ordinating Princi	pal Investigator/Resea	archer	major.resear	cher101010@gmail.	com	17/10/2020 14:44	Invalid
NMA Project	View as PDF	Signature Re	equests						
\times	古	Туре		Signato	ry Email	Reque	sted Date Stat	tus Response	Date Action
Correspond	Import Xml	Co-ordinating Princi	pal Investigator/Resea	archer major.re	searcher101010@gm	ail.com 17/10/	2020 16:00 Sign	ned 17/10/2020	16:11 Cancel

Collaborators

- Displays all members of the research team who have access to the application/form
- To view a collaborator's ERM email account, click on the collaborator's name and their email will be displayed

Acti	ons					700
Project	Create Subform		Specific Module (VSM))		
<	2+	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Share	Roles	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	02/04/2021 10:45	Project is not for NMA
ompleteness Check	Submit	Navigation D	ocuments Signature	collaborators	Submissions Correspondence	History
8	-					
IMA Project	View as PDF	Collaborators				
\times	4	Name	Access			Edit Permissions
Correspond	Import Xml	Prof Ann Researcher	Read, Write, Submit, S	Share, Create all sub forms, R	Receive notifications	Edit Permissions
		Prof M. Happy	major.researcher	101010@gmail.com		Edit Permissions

- The Edit Permissions button indicate the Share action was used to assign others access to the form
- The Edit Permissions (greyed out) button indicate the Roles + action was used to assign access to the form
- The form owner can only edit the permissions under the collaborators tab for each collaborator if the access was assigned using the **Share** action; otherwise use **Roles +** to edit permissions when **Roles +** is used

Submissions

- Displays the Review Reference e.g. HREC/72733/VICTEST-2021-246469(v3)
- Displays the current status of the application form e.g. Approved
- The Committee that will/has reviewed the application e.g. VICTest1
- Select View as PDF 🔜 action button to view, download or print the pdf from a new browser tab as required



Acti	ions							72
ភំង	0	Action Required	Status	Review Refere	nce		Date Modified	NMA
Project	Create Subform	No	Approved	HREC/72733/V	ICTEST-2021-246469(v	/3)	05/01/2021 11:57	Project is for NMA
5	<							
Reviewer Comments	Share	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
1+	-				C		9	
Roles	View as PDF	Submissions						
\times	4							
Correspond	Import Xml	Review Reference	e		Date	Status	Committee	Pdf
		HREC/72733/VICTES	T-2021-246469(v3)		05/01/2021	Approved	VICTest1	View as PDF
		HREC/72733/VICTES	T-2020-246311(v2)		31/12/2020	Archived	VICTest1	View as PDF

Correspondence

- Displays a record of the communication between the user and the reviewing organisation's research office
- It has no write/send message function
- Use the **Correspond** button under the Actions pane to write and send a message to the Research Office only after a form has been submitted

Acti	ons)					74
Project	Create Subform	● <u>HREA31</u> HREA	J					
<	1 +	Action Required	Status	Review Refere	ence		Date Modified	NMA
Share	Roles	No	Submitted	HREC/74950/\	/ICTEST-2021-25768	3(v1)	02/04/2021 12:19	Project is for NM
View as PDF	Correspond	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Import Xml	Recall	Corresponde	ence	+ New Co	orresponder	nce		
		Search corresponden	сө					
		User		Date	÷ •	Message	0	Attachment
		Ms Catherine Farrington		02/04/2	2021	CPI CV pending		

History

- Displays an audit trail of the application form. The user actions are recorded including actions from the Research Office once an application/form has been submitted
- Attachments can be downloaded and viewed if an action includes submitting a form

	Actions ~			Site Notification Form			
Project	Create Sub-	Share	Form Status	ndment Request	Application Type	Date Modified	NMA
Roles	Completeness Check	Submit	Recalled	N/A	Ethics Application	17/10/2018 09:26	Project is for NMA
C Refresh	NView as PDF	Print	Naviga	tion Documents Signature	s Collaborators Submission	ns Correspondence History	٦
							-
orrespond	timport Xml		Form History				_
_	-		Form History Search history				_
_	-		Search history	\$ User	Description		Attachment
_	-		Search history	0 User Ms Catherine Farrington	Description Correspondence Sent		Attachment Download
	-		Search history			ated	
Correspond	-		Search history Date 10:07	Ms Catherine Farrington	Correspondence Sent The form has been upd	ated	Download



2.8 ERM Reference Numbers

Project ID:

- Is the unique identification number for a research project
- Generated when you create a project in ERM
- Used to identify the research project

Review Reference:

- Is the unique identification code for a form submission
- Generated when you submit the form in ERM

Acti	ons	HREA 31						74950
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸					Project ID	
Share	R oles	HREA 31)		Revie	ew Referer	nce	
View as PDF	Correspond							
VION GOT DI	concopond	Action Required	Status	Review Refere	ence		Date Modified	NMA
\$	Ŧ	No	Submitted	HREC/74950/\	/ICTEST-2021-257683(v	1)	02/04/2021 12:19	Project is for NMA
Import Xml	Recall							
		Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
		HREA						

Composed of six parts - 0 2 3 4 5 6

e.g. HREC/74950/VICTEST-2021-257683(v1)

	Component	Description	Example
1	Application type	Identifies the type of application form	HREC - the HREA
2	Project ID	The unique identification number for the research project	74950
3	Organisation/hospital code	The organisation/hospital to which this form was submitted	VICTEST
4	Year	Year of submission	2021
\$	Submission number	Identifies the particular submission (version) of this form	257683
6	Version number	Versionnumber	v1



3 The HREA form

3.1 Create a HREA

- Log into ERM and go to the Work Area
- Select the Create Project button under the Actions pane

Work Area 🗸	Work Are	а			
Home Notifications	General				
Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared	
Create Folder	3	1	1	17	
Create Project	Folders				
	Archive				
Duplicate Transfer Project	19				

- Enter the Project Title
- Select the jurisdiction where the application will be reviewed
- Select HREA from the Main Form options
- Select Create button to create the project

Project Title (maximum 200 chara	cters):*
January Project	
Select Jurisdiction	
Victoria	
Main Form	
HREA	•
	Create

• The Project Tree will display the newly created project and HREA

Act	ions	HREA 02						7
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸 🗲	F	ProjectTre	e			
Share	Roles	HREA 02 HREA		Project Titl	е			
Completeness Check	Submit	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
2	9	Yes	Not Subm	itted	N/A	02/04/20	21 13:17	Project is not for NMA
Refresh	NMA Project							
-	\times	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
View as PDF	Correspond							
\$		HREA						Show Ina

3.2 Complete the HREA

- Working under the **Navigation** tab, the ERM Filter Questions and Introduction are mandatory questions to be completed
- If the project involves a site in Victoria, a Victorian Specific Module (VSM) must be completed if certain features apply to the research project





- Refer to the <u>Victorian Specific Module (VSM)</u> section in the manual for detailed instructions on completing the VSM
- In Section 1 of the HREA Introduction, select the Acknowledge and Continue button to open the rest of the HREA to complete the application
- To save your work select the Save button under the Actions pane
- Selecting Previous and Next buttons will also save your work

3.3 Import a HREA

If the HREA has already been completed on another website (NHMRC), the HREA form can be imported into ERM as an xml file.

- Details to obtain the xml file are available in <u>ERM Frequently Asked Questions</u> HREA section
- Create the project and HREA Main Form in ERM as previously described
- Complete the ERM Filter Questions and continue to 'HREA Introduction'
- Click on the Navigation
- button under the Actions pane
- Select Import Xml button
- An **Import from Xml** text box will be displayed
- Select Upload button



 Θ

÷

52

 Θ

Ø

<

~

1

0

2+

t

- The xml file will overwrite all existing answers in the HREA in ERM
- Signatures and documents will not be imported in the xml file therefore supporting documents will need to be uploaded in to the ERM HREA and signatures will need to be obtained again.

3.4 Upload documents

• Supporting documents to be included in the application are uploaded in Section 4 of the HREA

Select Navigate

button under the Actions pane to go to the Work Area

• In the bottom section of the HREA, select **Upload** to be directed to **Attachments Q 4.1** for e.g. the Protocol to be uploaded to the HREA



Act	ions	HREA
۲	\bigcirc	
Previous	Next	Attachments
Navigate	View as PDF	
Ø	D ²	Q4.1 Attach the Project Description/Protocol to your HREA. *
Documents	Signatures	 It is recommended that you use one of the templates provided in the HREA for your Project Description/Protocol. Individual attachments are limited to 10 MB in size
Save	Share	
Gave	Sindle	Upload Document

•

Press Upload Document Upload Document to attach the protocol from your local drive

Other documents e.g. Participant Information Consent Form can be uploaded to the application by . responding Yes to Q 4.2

Act	ions		
€	()	Q4.2 Are there any other relevant documents associated with conduct	ing your research project?
Previous	Next	This may include attachment of:	
		 participant information and consent forms, 	
1	-	 questionnaires, 	
/		 report forms, advertising materials, 	
Navigate	View as PDF	 data management plans (see National Statement Chapter 3.1), 	
0		 ethically defensible plans for the communication of research findings 	or results to participants (see National Statement
(1)	0	Chapters 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3, as appropriate, for guidance on the conten	t of ethically defensible plans),
Documents	Signatures	 authorisations, approvals, letters of support or other clearances, and/o 	
		 other project-related documentation specific to your institution and/or 	
P	~	Consult with your institution's research/ethics office for advice on the nec	essary documentation.
	~		
Save	Share	Yes	
		No	
2+	Se		
Roles	Collaborators		
110100	Condecidiore	Attach any other relevant documents associated with conducting your	research project. Optional
	t.		
		Ensure that you give meaningful and unique names to your files before u	ploading them.
Completeness	s Submit	The document name field is editable. Enter the description in the docume	
			Curriculum vitae (CV) or resume of investigator/researcher
			Drug data sheet
			 Form of indemnity Licence for dealing with a genetically modified organism
A drop-	down list o	f Supporting Documents will be displayed	GP/consultant information
			Institutional biosafety committee (IBC) approval
			Investigator brochure or reference safety information Invitation to participant
			Letter of support
			NSW privacy form Participant documentation e.g. diary, wallet card
			 Participant documentation e.g. diary, wallet card Participant information and consent form
			Peer review
Droce II	nload Dog	Upload Document to attach the colocted Supporting	Protocol (Tracked) Questionnaire
F1622 U	pload Doo	to attach the selected Supporting	Radiation: letter re standard care
Dooumo	nt from vo	ur logal drive	Radiation: medical physicist's report

- - Uploaded documents will be displayed under their type, name, file name and version •
 - Upload Document Multiple documents of the same document type can be added by selecting •
 - Specify the version and date of each document to differentiate the documents within the same document type • e.g. Sub-study PICFs



multiple times

Report forms Statistician comments Western Australian specific module Other project-related documentation

Document from your local drive

Туре	Document Name	File Name	Ve	ersion Date	Version	Size	Vie	W	Delet
Curriculum vitae	Dr Jones CV	Dr Jones CV.d	locx 01/	1/01/2018	1	12.5 Ki	BD	Download	Del
Upload Document	J								
	tion and consent forms	Document Name	File Name		Version Date	Version	Size	View	Del

- Documents will also be displayed under the Documents tab
- Select the relevant checkbox for document type
- Select the View Selected button to open the document as a PDF in a new browser or select the Download Selected button to download the document as a ZIP file

Acti	ions	Actio	n Required	Status		Review Reference		Date Mod	lified	NMA	75	001	?
ភំង	0	Yes		Not Submitted		N/A		02/04/202	1 13:39	Project is not f	or NMA		
Project	Create Subform												
Share	Roles	N	avigation	Documents S	Signatures	Collaborators		Submissions	Correspondence	History			
Completeness Check	Submit		uments										
3	8	•	Туре		Docur	ment Name	¢	File Name	\$	Version Date	Version	♦ Siz	ze
Refresh	NMA Project		Protocol		Decen	nber Holidays protocol		December Holiday	/s protocol.docx	01/12/2020	1	11.	.5 KB
		•	Participant infor	mation and consent form	PICF I	Master December 2020)	PICF Master Dece	ember 2020.docx	01/12/2020	1	12.	.2 KB
	\times		Form		Form			Form.pdf					
View as PDF	Correspond					Showing 1	to 3	of 3 entries	View Sele	Downloa	ad Selected)	

3.5 Assign access to the HREA

Acti	ions	Project Tree ✔						
Project	Create Subform)					
Share	Roles	Action Required	Status	R	eview Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
~	£	Yes	Not Submitt	ted N	I/A	02/04/20	21 13:39	Project is no
Completeness Check								
S	6	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Refresh	NMA Project							
-	\times	HREA						•
View as PDF	Correspond	Section Ques	tions					
		ERM Module ERM	1 Filter Questions					



 A dropdown list will display the different levels of access to the HREA HREA Share (read-only) – to view HREA including uploaded documents HREA Share (read, write) – to view and edit the form
 HREA Share (read, create subforms) – to view, create subforms (SSA)
 HREA Share (read, write, submit) – to view, write and submit forms HREA Share (read, write, submit) HREA Share (read-only) HREA Share (read, write) HREA Share (read, create subforms) HREA Share (read, write, submit)

Enter the collaborator's email address and select the level of access

Share Roles		×				
Sharing a form enables others to view/edit the same form depending on the level of access you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with: Collaborator email						
major.researcher101010@gmail.com Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone	HREA Share (read-only) HREA Share (read-only) HREA Share (read, write) HREA Share (read, create subforms) HREA Share (read, write, submit)	Ð				
		Share Role Close				

- Select Share Role button
- Other research team members can be added using the to button

If the collaborator does not have an ERM account

• A message will be displayed if the collaborator's email does not exist in ERM

Share Roles						
Sharing a form enables others to viewledit the same form depending on the level of access you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:						
Multisite.ethics@dhhs.vic.gov.au	Multisite.ethics@dhhs.vic.gov.au					
User does not exist on the system Invite						

- Select the Invite button to invite the collaborator to create an ERM account
- This raises a green bar across the screen advising the collaborator has been successfully invited

User has been successfully invited.
Share ? ×
Sharing a form enables others to view/edit the same form depending on the level of access you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:

• The collaborator will receive an email notification inviting them to share the project and a link to ERM to create an account. The collaborator should also notify the project owner when their ERM account has been activated

👌 New 🔻 ᇶ	인 New 🕶 Reply 🛪 🐺 Reply to All 🔻 😅 Forward 🖛 🍙 후 🖹 🕆 👔 Display ॰ 🖓 후 🅵 More 🕫						
	Please log in to ERM - Invitation from Ms <u>Catherine Farrington</u> donotreply to: Multiste ethics	27/02/2019 10:00 AM Show Details					
	Project Title: January Project Project ID: 50965						
Ms Catherine	Ms Catherine Farrington would like to share the above project with you but it appears that your email is not in the system.						
Please go to E	RM and select New User. Follow the prompts. Please inform Catherine when you have logged in so that they can share the project and assign your access permissions.						



- The project owner will need to repeat the steps to assign the collaborator access to the HREA as described • in Give access

Select **Roles +**

Acti	ons	Project Tree 👻						
Project	Create Subform	HREA 02 HREA						
Share	Roles	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	odified	NMA
	1	Yes	Not Subm	hitted	N/A	02/04/20	021 13:39	Project is not
Completeness Check								
3	8	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Refresh	NMA Project							
÷	\times	HREA						
View as PDF	Correspond	Section Ques	tions					
		ERM Module ERM	Filter Questions					

Accept access

- The collaboratore.g. the PI will receive an email notification on their assigned role for the project •
- The collaborator logs into ERM
- From the Work Area the collaborator selects Notifications tile

A Message text box will be d Select View Form	message
	Massana
🔲 🖌 🍺 Ms Catherine Farrington h	has assigned you a role in their project None January Project
	nangeu your form share access to, keau, write None January Project
Select the Message title to op	ben the message
Dreate Folder Delete Folder Create Project	Folders
e e O	Notifications Signatures Transfers Shared
Home Notifications	General
1	Work Area
Work Area 🗸	

- The project and form will be displayed. Supporting documents attached to the form can also be viewed
- The collaborator can edit and submit sub-forms e.g. the SSA for their site depending on the level of access • assigned by the project owner

Manage access

- The level of access previously assigned to a research member can be modified in the following way if Roles + has been used
- Highlight the relevant form in the Project Tree and select the Roles + •

button under the Actions pane

ed you a role in thei

Close

Ms Catherine Farrington has assig



Jobs, Precincts and Regions

- A Share Roles textbox will be displayed showing the form's level of access that has been assigned to the collaborator e.g. HREA read only
- Select Remove

haring a form enables others to vi	ew/edit the same form depending on the level of acce	ss you give them. Please select the use	rs you wish to share this form	with:	
Collaborator email		HREA Share (read-only)		• +	
Name	Role	Given on	Remove	Remove All Permissions	
Vis Amanda Walpole	HREA Share (read-only)	HREA	Remove	Remove	

- The Share Roles page stays to allow the level of access to be modified
- Enter the collaborator's ERM email address and new level of access e.g. read, create subforms
- Select Share Role

(Share Roles				×	
1	Sharing a form enables others to viewledit the same form depending on the level of access you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:					
[Collaborator email	HREA Share (read-only)	+			
	Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone	HREA Share (read-only) HREA Share (read, write)				
Γ		HREA Share (read, create subforms) HREA Share (read, write, submit)				
				Share Role	Close	

• The collaborator will receive an email notification informing them of the change in their access

3.6 Applying signatures

Declaration

The National Health and Medical Research Council **HREA** requires the applicant to enter the names of members of the research team who are signing the application.

- The Coordinating Principal Investigator is required to sign the Declaration for the HREA submission
- A declaration may be completed by each of the researchers/investigators
- Consult your institution's policy for guidance on whether all members must sign this application or whether the CPI can sign on behalf of the research team

Actions Investigator Team Declarations \bigcirc Θ This declaration must be completed by each of the researchers/investigators or, where applicable, one member on Previous Next behalf of the research team. · Consult your institution's policy for guidance on whether all members must sign this application or whether one member 1 ÷ can sign on behalf of the research team. · You can upload evidence of the other researchers/investigators' agreement to this declaration (e.g. a PDF of an email). View as PDF Navigate You can have researchers/investigators sign this application after it is completed and printed (i.e. a 'wet ink' signature).
 You can use the request signature feature to have other researchers/investigators complete their declaration within this 0 application Ø You must identify which researchers/investigators will be providing evidence or wet ink signatures. Upload any supporting documents and enter the relevant details for those researchers/investigators before requesting electronic signatures/electronically signing the application as this will lock the form. Docume Signatures Signature required by CPI Indicate which members must sign this application 2+ 1 Chief Investigator/Researcher Collaborator • Coordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher Lead Investigator/Researcher ~ ▲ Signature required by PI Principal Investigator Associate/Assistant/Sub-/Co-Investigator/Researcher

Signatures

The HREA form questions / information must be complete, <u>before</u> doing signatures Any change to the HREA form will invalidate signatures



The applicant must indicate how each member will be signing the application **before** requesting any electronic signatures.

Using a combination of signature methods, electronic signatures should be sought LAST as the application/form will be locked once an electronic signature request has been made Multiple electronic signatures can occur

There are three signature methods available:

- If a wet ink signature is preferred, select 'Wet ink after printing' to sign after the HREA is completed
- If a document is used to endorse agreement, select 'Upload other evidence' to reflect investigator's agreement then attach the evidence e.g. a PDF of an email
- For electronic signature select 'Electronic signature' and use the ERM 'Request Signature / Sign' function to electronically sign the declaration within the application using ERM
 - * Signatories must have an ERM account to provide an electronic signature

Act	ions	I, (insert name)						
۲	۲	certify that:						
Previous	Next		ation and supporting documentation is correct and as complete as possible; in this application the requirements of the National Statement and any other relevant					
1	-	guidelines;						
Navigate	View as PDF	 I have familiarised myself w guidelines and organisation 	ith, considered and addressed in this application any relevant legislation, regulations, research al policies;					
Hangato	tion do t bi	 All relevant financial and no 	n-financial interests of the project team have been disclosed; and					
Documents	Signatures		sor, as applicable, I have reviewed this application and I will provide appropriate supervis e with the arrangements specified in this application and those associated with the stude					
	<	Q4.7 How will the Coordinat	ing Principal Investigator/Researcher agree to these terms?					
Save	Share	 You can use the ERM 'requ 	est/sign' function to electronically sign this application.					
	£0.		ce' to upload and attach other evidence, such as an email. you intend to sign the HREA after it is printed (i.e. 'wet ink' signature).					
1		Select Sign after printing in	you mend to sign the HREA after it is printed (i.e. wet link signature).					
Roles	Collaborators							
		Electronic signature (in	place of HREA 'sign on screen')					
\checkmark		Upload other evidence						
Completeness	s Submit	Wet ink sign after printing	Wet ink sign after printing					

The HREA form owner may request signatures as follows:

- 1. To use Wet ink signature
- Select Wet ink sign after printing

Coordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher
I, (insert name) certify that: All information in this application and supporting documentation is correct and as complete as possible; All information in this application and supporting documentation is correct and as complete as possible; I have read and addressed in this application the requirements of the National Statement and any other relevant guidelines; I have familiarised myself with, considered and addressed in this application any relevant legislation, regulations, research guidelines and organisational policies; All relevant financial and non-financial interests of the project team have been disclosed; and I not expactly of a supervisor, as applicable, I have relevant the appropriate supervision to the student(s) in accordance with the arrangements specified in this application and those associated with the student's educational program.
Q4.7 How will the Coordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher agree to these terms? • You can use the ERM 'request/sign' function to electronically sign this application. • Select' Upload other evidence' to upload and attach other evidence, such as an email. • Select' Sign after principal if you inter the sign attach other evidence, such as an email.
Electronic signature (in place of HREA 'sign on screen') Upload other evidence Wet ink sign after printing Sign here:
Date:

• 'Wet ink sign after printing' creates a signature block (at bottom of screen)



- Using the **View as PDF** action button, custom print the page and obtain the signature from the CPI / PI. Save to your local drive as a pdf
- Navigate to last section of the HREA to find Upload
- Upload then opens Q 4.2 to attach the Declaration page
- Select 'Yes' to other relevant documents and select 'Other project-related documentation'
- Select Upload document
 Upload Document
 to attach the signature document to the HREA
- The uploaded signature document will be displayed with the document and file name and versions

 Other project-related docu 	umentation						
Other project-related documentation	specific to your institution	n and/or jurisdiction					
Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
Other project-related documentation	CPI signature	CPI signature.pdf	19/08/2018		155.5 KB	Download	Delete

- 2. To Upload other evidence to attach an email copy / letter to indicate agreement
- Select 'Upload other evidence'

Q4.7 How will the Coordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher agree to these terms?
 You can use the ERM 'request/sign' function to electronically sign this application. Select 'Upload other evidence' to upload and attach other evidence, such as an email. Select 'Sign after printing' if you intend to sign the HREA after it is printed (i.e. 'wet ink' signature).
 Electronic signature (in place of HREA 'sign on screen') Upload other evidence Wet ink sign after printing
Upload signature
Upload Document

- Select Upload Document Upload Document to attach the signature document from your local drive
- The Signature document will be displayed with document and file names and versions

 Select ' 	'Upload other evidence' to upload	tion to electronically sign this application and attach other evidence, such as an o sign the HREA after it is printed (i.e. 'w	email.					
● E	lectronic signature (in place of HI	REA 'sign on screen')						
• U	pload other evidence							
• W	Wet ink sign after printing							
Upload sig	gnature							
Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete	
Signature	Signature for Professor Smith	Signature for Professor Smith.docx	19/08/2018	1	12.5 KB	Download	Delete	

- 3. To request an Electronic Signature
- Select Electronic signature and a

button will appear





• To request an electronic signature from the Coordinating Principal Investigator / Principal Investigator, select

Request Signature

• The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections that need to be completed. Each incomplete item will be displayed as a link to the relevant section

button

- When all required sections of the HREA have been completed select Request Signature
 Request Signature
- Enter the signatory's ERM email address and message and select Request

Email Address			
Enter a message (Optional, max 800 cha	aracters)	

• The requested signatory will receive an email notification with the signature request, a message and link to ERM Log in/Signatures page

You have received a signature request from Ms Jane Citizen with a message.

Could you please sign this HREA?

To view your outstanding signature requests, click on the following link:

http://au.forms.ethicalreviewmanager.com/Signatures/Index

- The signatory logs into ERM
- From the Work Area the signatory selects Notifications or Signatures tile to open the signature request

V	Vork Area 👻		Work Are	2					
#	1		VUINAIC	a					
Home	Notifications		General						
	Actions 👻		Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared			
reate Folder	Delete Folder Cr	Contract Project	1	1	0	0			
O elete Project	Duplicate Project	Transfer	Folders)				

New requests are highlighted

	Work Area 👻	Signatures							
Ħ	13	0							
Home	Notifications	Search Signatures							
		Туре	Project Title	Requesting User	Message	Requested Date	Response Date 🕴	Status	Action
		Co-ordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher	October 22	Ms Catherine Farrington	Can you please sign the HREA	12/12/2018 15:38		Requested	View Form
		Head of Supporting Department	October 24	Ms Catherine Farrington		19/11/2018 12:20		Invalidated	View Form

• Under the Action tab, select View Form

to review the application

• For endorsement of the application, select Sign

button under the Actions pane



Act	ions	HREA	75001
Previous	() Next	Read access only.	
Avigate	View as PDF	ERM Filter Questions In which jurisdiction will your ethics application be submitted for review?	9
Sign Completeness Check	Reject	 Queensland Health Victoria Mater 	
		Project Title CHANGES TO THIS FIELD WILL UPDATE THE TITLE FOR THE ENTIRE PROJECT	0
		HREA 02	

A Sign Form text box is displayed
 The signatory enters their ERM log in details to sign the form
 Select Sign button

Please enter your logir	details in order to sign this form:	
Username	Password	

• The Status has changed from Requested to Signed

Signatures								
Search Signatures								
Туре	♦ Project Title	Project ID	Requesting User	Message	Requested Date	Response Date	Status A	ction
Co-ordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher	HREA 02	75001	Ms Catherine Farrington	Please sign the HREA	02/04/2021 14:50	02/04/2021 14:55	Signed	PDF being Generated
	HREA 16	67040	Ms Catherine	TESTING A FORM				

• The applicant receives an email notification indicating the signature request has been accepted by the signatory i.e. the form has been signed

See advice on acceptance of electronic signatures using ERM on the <u>Clinical trial research</u> webpage

Consult with the reviewing organisation for their policy on accepting electronic authorisation.

To request multiple signatures - when the applicant / form owner requests authorisation from other investigators

- Repeat the signatory process for electronic signatures from other research members if required e.g. Principal Investigator if indicated on the Investigator Team Declarations in the HREA
- Once the signature process is complete the form is locked

Act	ions	HREA
Previous	Next	This form has been locked through signatures/requests
1 Navigate	View as PDF	Declaration - CI/CPI/Lead Investigator
Documents	Signatures	
ef.	<	Coordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher
Unlock	Share	I, (insert name)
2+	59	certify that:



• The form can be unlocked for further editing by selecting the Unlock

- The form must open for the Unlock action button to be available
- A **Unlock form** text box is displayed noting this action will <u>invalidate any</u> <u>signatures</u> on the form
- Select Confirm to unlock the form
- The form is unlocked for editing

		Form unlocked
۲	$\overline{\mathbf{a}}$	
Previous	Next	Declaration - CI/CPI/Lead Investigator
1 Navigate	View as PDF	
0 Documents	V Signatures	Coordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher
	<	I, (insert name)
Save	Share	certify that:
Roles	S Collaborators	 All information in this application and supporting documentation is correct and as complete as possible; I have read and addressed in this application the requirements of the National Statement and any other relevant guidelines; I have familiarised myself with, considered and addressed in this application any relevant legislation, regulations, research

ſ

- Complete the edits in the form
- Repeat the signatory process for electronic signatures from research team members
- The application is ready for submission



button under the Actions pane



4 Submission and review process – HREA

In ERM the submission and review processes are similar for all forms.

For the initial application submission ensure the form is complete and all **documents are uploaded and signatures completed.**

To note, as the project title <u>cannot</u> be changed once approved, ensure the title is correct before submitting or resubmitting the application.

4.1 Submission

Navigate to the Actions pane and select the Submit

The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections.
 If complete, the form is ready to be submitted

button

Select the Submit

Submit		
Complete: Your form is complete and ready to su		
		Submit Ok

button

• The system will automatically submit the application to the HREC/ethics review body selected in Q 4.3 of the HREA

Application type	HREC - the HREA
ERM Project ID	74950
Organisation/hospital code	VICTEST
Year	2021- year of submission
Submission number	257683 - submission version number
Version number	v1

- Following the submission, a unique identification code is generated. It is composed of six parts - e.g. HREC/74950/VICTEST-2021-257683(v1)
- The Form Status
 Submitted
 of the application becomes Submitted

Recall an application

Any changes made to the submission will INVALIDATE all electronic signatures and will require all signature requests again

- Once the application has been submitted, a recall option becomes available
- The form can be recalled until the submission is actioned by the Research Office
- The recall removes the submitted application from the Research Office's ERM account
- Select the **Recall** button under the Actions Pane to recall the submission and make any changes / additions
- Select the **Submit** button again. The application will be resubmitted.



4.2 Responding to a query from the Research Office

If an application is queried by the Research Office for further clarification, changes or additions e.g. supporting documents, the form is **unlocked** for the applicant to complete the edits/revisions.

The form Status has changed from 'Submitted' to 'Queried' -

Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Yes	Queried	HREC/74950/VICTEST-2021-257691(v3)	02/04/2021 17:15	Project is for NMA

• The applicant is advised via an ERM email of important information regarding their application

🕅 Ignore 🗙 🗔 Sunk - Delete Archive	Reply Reply Forward More *	Web page G To Manager Team Email J Done Reply & Delete Y Create New	Move State	Rules * 💮 💽 OneNote Assign Mark C Actions * Policy * Unread	Categorize Follow Up + Transl	
Delete	Respond	Quick Steps	na Mov	/e Tags	s ra	Editing Zoom
D	Pinfonetica.net Catherine M I	arrington (DHHS) Holidays				
Dear Investigator, Please refer to the	attached letter for important	information from Default Comm	ittee-VIC regardir	ng your recent applicat	ion for research pro	iject December Holi
Application Type	HREC					

• A 'Query – Ethics Application' letter (pdf) from the Research Office will include details for further information to be provided via ERM

	QUERY - ETHICS APPLICATION
14 December 2018 Dear	
Project Title	December Holidays
Project ID	49968
Review Reference Local Reference Num	HREC/49968/DEF-2018-160008(v1) ber
(HREC). The application	2 an ethics application to Default Committee-VIC Human Research Ethics Committee has been assessed and it is not of a satisfactory standard for ethical review. Some order for the application to proceed for review by the HREC. ided
Change answer to ques	ton 4.2 and upload PICF,
Upload Protocol,	
Edit Questionnaire.	
Submission	
Please provide the requiprogress.	ested information via ERM as soon as possible, in order for your ethics application to
	pplication form in ERM and revise the supporting documentation as specified above ng documentation, ensure that:
	and/or version numbers are updated es copy is uploaded to ERM.
Please submit the requi	isted information using ERM in order for the application to be considered at the next conse is submitted after this date, your ethics application will be allocated to a later
HREC meeting. If a res meeting.	······

To access the Query

• In the Work Area, click on the Notifications tile

Work Area ~	Work Area	Number of unrea	ad messages is 1	
Actions V Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	Notifications Signatures	Transfers Shared	7	
Oulete Project Depleter Project Transfer	Folders Old Applications			
	Projects Search Project Project Title © Project II	D v Owner	Date Created Date Mo	dified 🛛 Transfer Status



• Select the Message title to open and view the message

lotif	ications		
Search			
Start	End		
Display	100 notifications		
	Please note that only the specified number of notifications will show after searching.		
	Message	Attachment Project Short	Title 🕴 Time 🗸
~	Your January Project has been upgraded	None January Project	14/02/2019
~	Dr Bernice Davies has requested a signature from you	None February Project	07/02/2019
~	Your form has been signed by Ms Abigail Cooper	None Jan Project	07/02/2019
~	Dr Bernice Davies changed your form share access to: Read, Write, Submit	None March Project	04/02/2019
~	Dr Bernice Davies has assigned you a role in their project	None February Project	01/02/2019
~	Information is required regarding your application. Please refer to the attached letter.	New Years Eve	14/01/2019

- A Message box will be displayed allowing the user to view the form
 Press View Form
 View Form
 to be directed to the relevant form
 Information is required regarding your application. Please
 refer to the attached letter.
- The form will open under the Navigation tab

	Work Area	~	December	Holidays							
Home	1 Notifications		Project Tree 🛩								
Project	Actions ~	3	December I O HRFA								
Share	Create Sub- form	Comments	Form Status	Review Reference		Application Type		Date Modified		NMA	
onare	PLOIDS	Completeness Chuck	Queried	N/A		Ethics Application		13/12/2018 14:25		Project is not for NMA	ł.
Submit	Refresh	S NMA Project	Nav	Igation Documents	Signaturos	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History		
	\sim	4									
View as PC	OF Correspond	Import Xml	HREA								
			Section	Questions							
			ERM Modulo	ERM Filter Questions							
			HREA Introduction	Introduction HREC Director	(
			Project Overview	Project Overview							
			Project Team	Project Team							
			Disclosure of Interests	Disclosure of Interests							
			Restrictions	Restrictions							
			Evaluations	Evaluations							
			Location	Location							
			Methods	Methods							
			Participants	Participants							

- Select **Reviewers Comments** under the Actions pane
- A text box will be displayed of the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments (e.g. 3 comments)

Overall Reviewer Panel Comments	Supporting document requiring ed	its ow Previous Comments
Comment	Date Added	Submission
Please edit the questionnaire.	14/12/2018 at 09:16 AM	Latest Submission
This application will not be reviewed until you provide a protocol.	14/12/2018 at 09:15 AM	Latest Submission
This project requires a participant information and consent form. Please provide it.	14/12/2018 at 09:14 AM	Latest Submission
		Close

- Select a comment to be directed to the relevant section in the form i.e. to Q 4.2 Are there any other relevant documents associated with conducting your research project?
- As the query requires a new version of a document, the original version should be deleted, and the new version uploaded into the form. Deleted/previous document versions are automatically archived. See <u>Archived documents</u> for further information on how to access archived documents.
- **Delete** to delete the original version



Close

Collaborators 5 Perviewer Commentis	 Proto- Ques Radia Radia Radia Repo Statis Wester 	review col (Tracked) isonnaire ition: letter re standard care ition: medical physicist's report it forms tician comments tician comments mr Australian specific module project-related documentation						
	Questionnaires				\frown			
	Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
	Questionnaire	December Questionnaire	December Questionnaire.docx	17/12/2018	1.2	12.4 KB	Download	Delete

- Select Upload Document
 to upload the revised (new) version of the document with the correct
 version number and date
- Previous document versions are archived in **Submitted Documents** and viewed in the **Project Overview** screen

Work Area V	Project Overview - Jan Project		
	Bits Bepofits Assessment (BBA) VIC - Administrator Use Only Bits Holfbation From Amendment Request VIC Project Progress Report VIC		
	Forms Submitted Documents	Transfers	History
	Submitted Documents		
	Porm Reference © Porm name © Submission Date © Status © Type HHEA HHEA 07002019 Submitted Protocol	Name Study XYZ	Version Size View 1.1 12.5 KB Download

• The HREA now includes the latest version ready for resubmission

Collaborators Completeness Check Subr 5 Reviewer Comments	-	Ques Radia Radia Repo Statis West	titionnaire titionnaire ation: medical physicist's report rt forms titician comments ern Australian specific module r project-related documentatio						
		Questionnaires							
		Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
		Questionnaire	December Questionnaire	December Questionnaire.docx	31/12/2018	1.3	12.4 KB	Download	Delete

• Continue to complete the other queries as instructed in the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments as above

Note amending a form and/or adding a new document will invalidate any electronic signatures

- Once the revisions/additions have been completed, the form and / or supporting documents can be resubmitted
- The system will automatically search for a completed electronic signature if 'Electronic signature' was selected in **Q 4.7** of the HREA in the previous submission
- If the CPI is not required to complete the Declaration page, proceed to Q 4.7 of the HREA


• Select Wet ink sign after printing. This will reset the signature method to enable the system to resubmit the application



• In the Actions pane select the Submit

button to resubmit

æ	Actions 🗸	1	Licene	of indemnity ce for dealing with a gene insultant information	tically modified organi	sm					
Previous	Next	Navigate		tional biosafety committee							
View as PDF	Documents Share	Signatures Letter Roles Submit	Invital Lottor NSW Partic Poror Radia Radia Radia West	igilator brochure or referent on to participant of support privacy form pant information e.g., pant information e.g., pant information e.g., optimistic e.g., o	diary, wallet card sent form e sport dule						
			Participant inform	nation and consent forms							
			Туре		Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
			Participant informati	on and consent form	PICFs Dec 2017	PICFs Dec 2017.docx	01/12/2018	1.1	474.6 KB	Download	Delete
			Upload Document Questionnaires	1							
			Туре	Document Name	File Name		Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
			Questionnaire	December Questionnaire	December Ques	ionnaire.docx	31/12/2018	1.3	12.4 KB	Download	Delete

- The Research Office will receive the submission
- The application is assigned to a HREC meeting
- Following the HREC review there may be an information request from the Ethics Committee

4.3 Ethics Committee review request

Clarification or requests for further information from the reviewing Ethics Committee to the applicant must be managed through ERM. The form is unlocked for the applicant to complete the edits/revisions.

The form Status has changed from 'Submitted' to 'Information Requested'.

• The applicant is advised via an ERM email of important information regarding the application

ि Ignore र्द्यु Junk र	Delete Archive	Reply Reply Forward All Forward More *	Image: State of the state	→ → → Mor	Rules ▼ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓ ↓	Assign Mark Categori: Policy * Unread *	e Follow Up +	Find → Find → Related → Select →	Q Zoom
1	Delete	Respond	Quick Steps	Es .	Move	Tags	5	Editing	Zoom
D	donotreply@ IMPORTANT	infonetica.net Catherine M Fi INFORMATION re December H							Ū1 M
	tter.pdf 9 KB	•							
Dear Ir	nvestigator,								
Please	e refer to the	attached letter for important	information from Default Committ	ee-VIC re	garding your	recent application for	resear	ch project Decembe	er Holidays .
Projec	tID 4	HREC 19968 HREC/49968/DEF-2018-1608	83(v2)						
Kind re	gards,								



A 'Request for Further Information' letter (pdf) from the HREC will include • details for further information to be provided via ERM

Default C	ommittee-VIC Human Research Ethics Committee
R	EQUEST FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
17 December 2018	
Dear ,	
Project Title Project ID Raview Reference	December Holidays 49908 HIRC/40088/DEF-2018-160883(v2)
Local Reference Number	<i>π</i>
Thank you for submitting a (HREC). The application v	in othics application to Default Committee-VIC Human Research Ethics Committee ras reviewed by the HREC at their meeting on <hrec date<="" meeting="" td=""></hrec>
The information provided i ethical and scientific acce information regarding the	In the othics application was not sufficient for the HREC to make a decision on the ptability of your proposed research project. The HREC therefore requests further research project.
Information to be Provid	
Title Q4.1 Attack the Project	Comment The protocol is nise but needs more data? about the mathodology.
Description Protocol to your HEEA. Quarticensation	The questionnaire is too samples. Please simplify it so that participants will be able to understand.
Readernianion	
	ted information via ERM as soon as possible, in order for your ethics application to
Please amend the ethics a above. For changes to sup	application form in ERM and revise the supporting documentation as specified sporting documentation, arears that:
all version dates an	dior version numbers are updated
	Page 1 of 2
a tracked-changes	copy is uploaded to ERM.
Please resubmit using ER	M in order for the application to be considered at the next HREC meeting.
If a response is not receive withdrawn/cancelled. If this	ed within three months of the date of this letter, your application may be a occurs, a new ethics application would be required.
If you require any further is us via the ERM 'Gorrespor	formation or may need an extension to the resubmission timeline, please contact of button.

Respond to a request for further information from the Ethics Committee

- Depending on the request, the applicant can amend the HREA and add new documents •
- Log in to ERM account •
- In the Work Area, click on the Notifications tile •
- Select the Message title to open and view the message .

Work Area 🐱	Notifications	
# 2	Search	
Home Notifications	Start End	
	Display 100 notifications	
	Please note that only the specified number of notifications will show after searching. Search	
	🗉 🗄 Message 🕴 Attachment 🖗 Project Short Title 🔅 Time 🔹	
	Information is required regarding your application. Please refer to the attached letter. Ø December Holidays 17/12/2018	
	Message)

A Message box will be displayed allowing the user to view the form Press View Form to be directed to the relevant form



The HREA, will open under the Navigation tab .

V	Vork Area	~	December	Holidays						
Home	1 Notifications		Project Tree 🗸							
	Actions ~	\frown	O December He	olidays						
Project	Create Sub	3 Reviewer Comments	O HREA							
<	2+		Form Status	Review Reference		Application Type		Date Modified		NMA
Share	Roles	Completeness Check	Queried	N/A		Ethics Application		13/12/2018 14:25		Project is not for NMA
at.	2	S								
Submit	Refresh	NMA Project	Navig	ation Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
÷	\times	3								
lew as PDF		Import Xml	HREA							
			Section	Questions						
			ERM Module	ERM Filter Questions						
			HREA Introduction	Introduction HREC Directory						
			Project Overview	Project Overview						
			Project Team	Project Team						
			Disclosure of Interests	Disclosure of Interests						
			Restrictions	Restrictions						
			Evaluations	Evaluations						
			Location	Location						
			Methods	Methods						
			Participants	Participants						

Select Reviewers Comments under the Actions pane

A text box will be displayed of the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments



Overall Reviewer Panel Comments		×
Comment	Date Added	Show Previous Comments
The questionnaire is too complex. Please simplify it so that participants will be able to understand.	17/12/2018 at 13:48 PM	Latest Submission
The protocol is nice but needs more detail about the methodology.	17/12/2018 at 13:46 PM	Latest Submission

- Select a comment e.g. a comment requesting more information in the protocol, to be directed to the relevant section in the form i.e. Q 4.1 Attach the Project Description/Protocol to your HREA
- The request requires a new version of a protocol. The original version should be deleted, and the new version uploaded into the form. Deleted/previous document versions are automatically archived. See Archived documents for further information on how to access archived documents.
- Select Delete

to delete the original version

Act	ions	Attach	nents						
Previous) Next								
1 Navigate	View as PDF	• It is r		ion/Protocol to your HREA. * one of the templates provided i ed to 10 MB in size	in the HREA fo	r your Pro	oject Desc	ription/Protoco	ol.
D ocuments	Signatures	Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
P	<	Protocol	December Holidays protocol	December Holidays protocol.docx	01/12/2020	1	11.5 KB	Download	Delete

Select Upload Document version number and date

to upload the revised (new) version of the protocol with the correct

The

Act	ions	Attachm	nents						
E Previous	() Next								
1				on/Protocol to your HREA. *					
Navigate	View as PDF		ecommended that you use o dual attachments are limited	ne of the templates provided in the H I to 10 MB in size	IREA for you	Ir Project	Descri	iption/Protoco	
Navigate O Documents	View as PDF	• Individ			IREA for you Version Date	Ir Project	t Descri Size	iption/Protoco View	l. Delete

- Continue to complete the other requests as instructed in the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments as above
- In the Actions pane select the **Submit**

button to resubmit

The reviewing Research Office will receive the resubmission

Approved Applications

- Applicants are informed of decisions by the HREC via email using ERM. If the application has been • approved, the form is locked
- Log on to ERM and click on Notifications tile
- A formal approval letter from the HREC can be downloaded by the applicant •
- If the application review outcome is not approved, applicants are also informed via email through ERM. •



5 National Mutual Acceptance (NMA) applications

NMA is a national system for mutual acceptance of scientific and ethical review of multi-centre human research projects conducted in publicly funded health services across jurisdictions.

Single ethical and scientific review for a multi-centre human research project can be provided across seven participating states/territories.

If the application is to be reviewed under the NMA scheme, this needs to be recorded in ERM for reporting purposes.

- When completing the HREA, select Yes to Q 4.6 Will this application be reviewed under the National Mutual Acceptance scheme?
 - 1
- Navigate

back to the Actions pane and select NMA Project

Acti	ons	HREA 02						7
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree ❤						
Share	Roles	HREA 02						
Completeness Check		Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
2	6	Yes	Not Submit	ted	N/A	02/04/20	21 14:49	Project is not for NMA
Refresh	NMA Project							
View as PDF	Correspond	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History

A NMA Project text box will be displayed

NMA P	roject		×
Mark this pro scheme.	ject as NMA if it is to be reviewed under th	ne National Mutua	Acceptance
	Project is NMA	Ŧ	
		Save	Close

• Select Project is NMA from the drop-down list



• The Form Status Table will be updated to 'Project is for NMA'



6 Victorian Specific Module

For each project that utilises the HREA form and has a site in Victoria, the Victorian Specific Module (VSM) must be completed if certain research features of the project apply as indicated in the HREA - ERM Filter Questions. In these instances, the VSM is mandatory when the HREA is used. It addresses Victorian legislative requirements.

The VSM is submitted to the reviewing HREC as part of the ethics application. The following steps also apply if the ethics review is in QLD but select Victoria when creating the VSM sub-form.

In ERM:

- The VSM is created as a sub-form of the HREA
- Highlight the HREA in the Project Tree and select the Create Sub-form pane

button under the Actions

	tions	HREA 02						7
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸						
Share	Roles)					
~	<u></u>							
Completeness Check	s Submit	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
2	6	Yes	Not Subr	nitted	N/A	02/04	1/2021 17:38	Project is for NMA
Refresh	NMA Project							
View as PDF	Correspond	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History

- A Create Sub-form text box will be displayed ٠ Select the Victorian Specific Module (VSM) from the drop-down list Select Create The VSM will appear in the Project Tree as a sub-form of the HREA .
- Complete all applicable sections of the VSM form .

Create Sub-	-form	
Select Jurisdiction		/
Victoria	Ŧ	
Select the sub-form th	hat you would like to apply to this form	-
Victorian Specific M	lodule (VSM)	

Act	ions	HREA 02						7
Project	Duplicate Form	Project Tree ❤						
Delete Form	Share			<u>e (VSM)</u>]				
<u>1</u>	2	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
Submit	Refresh	Yes	Not Sub	mitted	N/A	02/04	1/2021 17:47	Project is for NMA
S NMA Project	View as PDF	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History



• In the VSM, select View as PDF action button to generate a pdf and save to your local drive

Act	ions	Victorian Specific Module (VSM)
۲	()	
Previous	Next	Blood
Navigate	View as PDF	3.1(a) Will the research involve the collection of blood from an adult?
Documents	Signatures	● Yes● No

Return to the HREA (highlight in Project Tree) and go to the
 ERM Filter Questions section

Acti Project	Create Subform		A torian Specific Modul	e_(VSM)				75
Share	Roles	Action Required	Status		Review Reference		Modified	NMA
Completeness Check	Submit	Yes	Not Sub	omitted	N/A	02/04	4/2021 17:38	Project is for NMA
Refresh	S NMA Project	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
View as PDF	Correspond		tions I Filter Questions					Show Inact
4		HREA Intro	duction HREC Direc	ctory				

- Select Upload Document
 Upload Document
 to upload thepdfof the VSM
- The VSM is attached to the HREA as a supporting document

Acti	ons	
Previous	() Next	Will this ethics application involve a site or data in Victoria?
1 Navigate	View as PDF	 Yes No Select the features that are applicable to this research project:
Documents	Signatures	 Recruitment of adult research participants who do not have decision making capacity Collection, use and/or disclosure of personal and/or health information Removal of tissue or blood from a living or deceased adult or child, or performance of a post mortem
Save	Share	None of the above The Victorian Specific Module (VSM) is required. Create the VSM as a Sub-form of this HREA. Before submitting this HREA, upload the VSM below.
Roles	Collaborators	Victorian Specific Module Type Document Name File Name Version Date Version Size View Delete
Completeness	Submit	Victorian specific module (VSM) VSM VSM.pdf 02/04/2021 1 226.6 KB Download Delete

- When the HREA is complete and all supporting documents are uploaded (including the VSM) and signatures obtained, **Submit** the HREA
- Return to the VSM in the Project Tree and Submit the VSM
- If edits to the VSM are requested by the reviewing HREC, the Research Office will unlock the form
- Complete the edits and select Submit



7 Victorian Low and Negligible Risk application (LNR VIC)

For a single-site low and negligible (LNR) research project, the LNR VIC application form may be utilised instead of the HREA. A Victorian Specific Module is not required for project utilising the LNR VIC application form.

Some reviewing HRECs may not accept the LNR VIC; always discuss the research project with the reviewing organisation's Research Office before creating an ethics application for a low risk research project.

7.1 Create a LNR VIC form

- Log into ERM and go to the Work Area
- Select Create Project button under the Actions pane

Work Area 🗸	Work Area
Home Notifications	General
Actions 🛩	Notifications Signatures Transfers Shared
Create Folder	3 1 1 17
Create Project	Folders
	Archive
Duplicate Transfer Project	19

- Enter the Project Title
- Select Victoria as the reviewing jurisdiction
- Select LNR VIC from the Main Form options
- Select Create button to create the project



• The Project Tree will display the newly created project and LNR VIC

Act	ions	LNR Apri						7
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸						
Share	Completeness Check							
<u> </u>	2							
Submit	Refresh	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
9	-	Yes	Not Subr	nitted	N/A	04/04/20	21 12:07	Project is not for NMA
NMA Project	View as PDF							
\times		Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Correspond								
		LNR VIC						Show Ind



7.2 Complete the LNR VIC

- Working under the 'Navigation' tab, the **Introduction** section provides a drop-down list of HRECs that will accept the LNR VIC form. Review this section before completing the form. If your organisation is not listed, contact your research office for guidance.
- Continue to complete each section relevant to your application

7.3 Upload documents

- Sections within the form allow supporting documents e.g. protocol, questionnaire to be uploaded into the form
- Other supporting documents can be uploaded by selecting the Supporting Documents hyperlink
 Supporting Documents located in the last section of the LNR VIC
- Press Upload Document
 Upload Document
 to attach the selected Supporting Document from your local drive
- Uploaded documents will be displayed under their type, name, file name and version
- Multiple documents of the same document type can be added by selecting Upload Document
 multiple times
- Specify the version and date to differentiate the documents within the same document type

Act	ions								7
E									
Previous	Next	Supp	orting Documents	3					
Navigate	View as PDF	Uploa	d any other supporting	documents					
Ø	P	Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
Documents	Signatures	Other	Signature document	Signature document.docx	01/04/2021	1	12.5 KB	Download	Delete
	<	Upload	d Document						

7.4 Assign access to the LNR VIC form

In ERM, the project owner can make the LNR VIC form available to other research team members.

Using the **Share** function, the project owner assigns other collaborators specific levels of access to the LNR VIC form.

• Select the **Share** button under the Actions pane

Acti	ons	LNR Apri						
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸						
Share	Completeness Check							
Submit	Refresh	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
9	-	Yes	Not Subn	nitted	N/A	04/04/20	021 12:07	Project is not for NMA
NMA Project	View as PDF							
Correspond		Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
		LNR VIC						Show In



- A Share textbox will be displayed. Enter the collaborator's ERM email address and select the checkboxes to assign the level of access
- Select Share
 Share
- The collaborator will receive an email notification of their assigned access to the form

-	to view/edit the same form depending on the level select the users you wish to share this form with:
Collaborator email	
Collaborator email	Read +
	✓ Write
	 Submit
	Share
	 Create all sub forms
	 Receive notifications

7.5 Applying signatures

Declaration

The Principal Investigator is required to sign the Declaration page for the LNR VIC submission.

- A declaration may be completed by other researchers/investigators e.g. Associate Investigators
- Consult your institution's policy for guidance on whether all members must sign this application or whether the PI can sign on behalf of the research team

Act	ions	Statement
Previous) Next	Declaration of Principal Investigator
✔ Navigate	View as PDF	 I certify that: All information is correct and as complete as possible. I have had access to and read the National Statement on Ethical Conduct in Human Research (NHMRC, 2007) and the research will be conducted in accordance with the National Statement.
Documents	Signatures	 I have consulted any relevant legislation and regulations, and the research will be conducted in accordance with these. I will immediately report to the HREC/non-HREC review body anything which might warrant review of the research, including: serious or unexpected adverse effects on participants; complaints; proposed changes in the protocol; and unforseen events that might affect continued ethical acceptability of the project.
Save	Share	 I have attempted to identify all the risks related to the research that may arise in conducting this research and acknowledge my obligations and the rights of participants. I will not continue the research if ethical approval or site authorisation is withdrawn and will comply with any special conditions required by the HREC/non-HREC review body, including: conditions of approval stipulated by the HREC/non-HREC review body; cooperate with monitoring requirements (at a minimum annual progress reports and a final report will
Lollaborators	Completeness Check	 I have the appropriate qualifications, training, experience and facilities to conduct the research and to deal with any emergencies and contingencies related to the research that may arise.
Submit		Request Signature Sign

An electronic signature is obtained using ERM.

The signatory must have an ERM account to provide an electronic signature

An electronic signature should be sought LAST as the application/form will be locked once the electronic signature request has been made.

The LNR VIC form owner may request signatures as follows:

To use Wet ink signature

- Using the **View as PDF** button from the Actions pane, custom print the Declaration page and obtain the signature from the PI. Scan and save to your local drive as a pdf
- Navigate to last section of the LNR VIC to find the Supporting Documents hyperlink
 Supporting Documents
- Supporting Documents opens to attach the Declaration page
- Select Upload document
 Upload Document
 to upload the signed Declaration page to the LNR VIC
- The uploaded signed Declaration page will be displayed with the document, file name and version



Act	ions	LNR	VIC						7
E	()		VIC						
Previous	Next	Suppo	orting Documents	5					
Navigate	View as PDF	Upload	any other supporting	documents					
0	ľ	Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
Documents	Signatures	Other	Signature document	Signature document.docx	01/04/2021	1	12.5 KB	Download	Delete
	<	Upload	Document						

To Upload other evidence - to attach an email copy / letter to indicate agreement

- Navigate to last section of the LNR VIC to find the Supporting Documents hyperlink Supporting Documents
- Supporting Documents opens to attach the signature document
- Continue as described above to Upload the pdf document to the LNR VIC

To request an Electronic Signature

- Select Request Signature Request Signature button
- The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections that need to be completed
- When all sections have been completed, select Request Signature
 Request Signature
 - Request a signature
 :

 Enter the email address of the person you want to sign this form

 Email Address

 Enter a message (Optional, max 800 characters)

 Request

 Close
- Enter the signatory's ERM email address and select Request
- The signatory will receive an email notification for a signature, a message and a link to ERM Log In page
- The signatory logs in to ERM
- From the Work Area the signatory selects Signatures tile to open the request

Work Area 🐱	Work Are	2		
1 0	WOLK ALE	a		
Home Notifications	General			
Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared
Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	10	2	1	25
Delete Project	Folders			

- New requests are highlighted
- Under the Action tab, select View Form view form to review the application

Signatures								
Search Signatures								
Туре	∳ Project ∳ Title	Project	Requesting User	Message	Requested Date	Response Date	Status	Action
Principal Investigator	LNR April	75014	Ms Catherine Farrington	Please sign the LNR form	04/04/2021 13:27		Requested	View Form
Co-ordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher	HREA 02	75001	Ms Catherine Farrington	Please sign the HREA	02/04/2021 14:50	02/04/2021 14:55	Invalidated	View Form



• For endorsement of the application, select **Sign**

Ac	tions	LNR VIC 7
€	()	
Previous	Next	Read access only.
◀ Navigate	View as PDF	Information
1º	X	Guidance
Sign	Reject	The Victorian Low and Negligible Risk Ethics Application Form (LNR VIC) can be used for a single-site low/negligible risk research project in Victoria only.
Completenes Check	55	Some Human Research Ethics Committees (HRECs) or ethics review bodies do not accept the LNR VIC. At these organisations, the Human Research Ethics Application (HREA) form must be used for all ethics applications.
		Before completing the LNR VIC, consult with the research office of the organisation that hosts the reviewing HREC or ethics review body.
		All research must be conducted in compliance with the National Statement on Ethical Conduct in Human Research (NHMRC, 2007).

button under the Actions pane

• A Sign Form text box is displayed. The signatory enters their ERM log in details to sign the form

Select Sign button

- The applicant receives an email notification indicating the signature request has been accepted
- Repeat the signatory process for electronic signatures from other members if required e.g. Associate Investigator if indicated in the Research Team in the LNR VIC
- Once the signature is complete the application is ready for submission



8 Submission and review process – LNR VIC

Initial application submission – ensure the Form is complete and all documents are uploaded and signatures completed

8.1 Submission

Navigate to the Actions pane and select the Submit

button

- The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections If complete, the form is ready to be submitted
- Select the **Submit**, button

Submit	
Complete: Your form is complete and ready to submit	

- The system will automatically submit the application to the HREC/ethics review body selected in the 'Introduction' section of the LNR VIC form
- Following submission, a unique identification code is generated. It is composed of six parts – e.g. LNR/61791/DEF-2020-202467 (v1)

	ation type Project ID
Organ	isation/hospital code
Year Submi	ssion number
Versio	n number

LNR 61791 DEF 2020- year of submission 202467 - submission version number v1

Recall an application

Any changes made to the submission will INVALIDATE all electronic signatures

and will require all signature requests again

- Once the application has been submitted, a recall option becomes available
- The form can be recalled until the submission is actioned by the Research Office
- The recall removes the submitted application from the Research Office's ERM account
- Select the **Recall** button under the Actions Pane to recall the submission and make any changes / additions
- Select the Submit button again. The application will be resubmitted



8.2 Responding to a query from the Research Office

If an application is queried by the Research Office for further clarification or changes, additions (e.g. supporting documents):

• The applicant is advised via an ERM email of important information regarding their application

Ignore Image: Constraint of the second sec	Reply Forward All Respond	ERM Training G To Manager Team Email Jone Reply & Delete 7 Create New Quick Steps	Rules *	Assign Mark Categorize F Policy + Unread + Tags	ollow Up * □ □ Up * Editing	Zoom Zoom
donotreply@infone IMPORTANT INFO	tica.net Catherine M F	arrington (DHHS) Y				
Letter.pdf 112 KB						
Dear Investigator,						
Please refer to the attac	hed letter for important	information from Default Commi	ttee-VIC regarding your	recent application for re	search project LNR Janu	lary.
Application Type LNR Project ID 50365						
Review Reference LNR/5		2(v1)				
Kind regards, Ms Abigail Cooper						
This is a system-generated e	mail, please do not reply.					

A 'QUERY-ETHICS APPLICATION' letter (pdf) from the Research Office will include details for further information to be provided via ERM

information to be provided via ERM	Your Logo Here
	Default Committee-VIC Human Research Ethics Committee
	8 January 2019
	Dear .
• The form will be unlocked to allow the applicant to complete the revisions /	Projekt Tile LNR January Projekt Tile 50365 Barvier Reference LNR/50365/DEF-2010-101972(v1) Local Reference Number
additions as requested	Thank you for submitting an ethics application to Default Committee-VIC Human Research Ethics Committee (HREC). The application has been assessed and it is not of a satisfactory standard for ethical review. Some changes are required in other for the application to proceed for review by the HREC. Information to be Provided
	Please amend the Participant Information and Consert Form to include the duration of the study. Submission
	exemination Please provide the requested information via ERM as soon as possible, in order for your ethics application to progress.
	Please revise the supporting documentation as specified above. For changes to supporting documentation, ensure that:
	all version dates and/or version numbers are updated a tracked-changes copy is uploaded to ERM.
	Please submit the requested information using ERM by 16 January 2019 in order for the application to be considered at the next HREE meeting. If a response is submitted after this date, your ethics application will be allocated to a later meeting.
To access the Ower's	If you require any further information, please contact us via the ERM 'Correspond' hutton or 1234-5878

To access the Query

• In the Work Area, click on the Notifications tile

Work Area 🗸	Work Area
Home Notifications	General
Actions 🐱	Notifications Signatures Transfers Shared
Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	8 0 0 11
Delete Project Duplicate Project Transfer	Folders
	Old Applications
	Projects
	Bearch Projects
	Project Title Ø Project ID

• Select the Message title to open and view the message

	1	Nork Area	×	Notif	fications									
1	ŀ.	9		Search										
Но	me	Notification	•	Start		End			1					
				Display		e specified number of notifications		100 notifications						
					Search	e specified humbler of houncations	will show alter searching							
					Message			—		0	Attachment 0	Project Short Title	0	Time
				• •	Information is req	uired regarding your application.	Please refer to the attach	ed letter.			Ø	LNR January		14:59



Yours sincerely,

 A Message box will be displayed allowing the user to view the form 	•	A Message	box will be dis	played allowing the use	er to view the form
--	---	-----------	-----------------	-------------------------	---------------------

- Press View Form
 to be directed to the relevant form
- The LNR VIC form will open under the **Navigation** tab.

Project Short Tille LNR January Date 09/01/2019 14:59 Information is required regarding your application. Please refer to the attached letter.

Message

Select **Reviewers Comments** under the Action pane

N N	Nork Area	Ý	LNR Januar	У						
Home	8 Notifications		Project Tree 🗸							
Project	Actions V Create Sul-	1 Reviewer Comments	LNR January LNR VIC LNR VIC LNR VIC	/IC SSA - Administrator use on	ly					
Share	Completeness	Submit	Form Status	Review Reference		Application Type		Date Modified		NMA
2	5	-	Queried	N/A		LNR Application		09/01/2019 14:53		Project is not for NMA
Refresh	NMA Project	View as PDF								
\times			Navigati	on Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
Correspond										
			LNR VIC							
			Section	Questions						
			Introduction	Organisation						
			Research Project	Project Details						
			Research Team	Research Team	1					

• A text box will be displayed of the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments

Overall Reviewer Panel Comments			×
Comment	PICF requires edits	Date Added	Show Previous Comments
Please include duration of study.		09/01/2019 at 14:56 PM	Latest Submission
			Close

- Select the comment to be directed to the relevant section in the form i.e. to Participant Consent Q 5.1
- As the query requires a new version of a **document**, the original version should be deleted, and the new version uploaded into the form. Previous document versions are automatically archived.
- Select Delete t

to delete the original version

	Actions 🛩		LNR VIC							
۲	()	1								
Previous	Next	Navigate	Participant Consent							C
View as PDF	0 Documents	Signatures	5.1 Will the research project involve in	nformed consent of participa	ints?					
Save	Share	Collaborators	⊛ Yes ⊜ No							
Completeness Check	Submit	1 Reviewer Comments	5.1(a) How will informed consent be a	obtained and recorded?						
			Upload Participant Information and Co Type	onsent Form (PICF)	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
			Participant information and consent form	Master PICF January 2018	Master PICF January 2018.docx	01/01/2019	1.1	473.2 KB	Download	Delete

Select Upload Document
 version number and date

to upload the revised (new) version of the document with the correct

	Actions 🗸		LNR VIC									
Previous	\bigcirc	1										
	Next	Navigate	Participant Consent								5	
View as PDF	Documents	Signatures	5.1 Will the research proje	ct involve informed	d consent of participar	ils?						
Save	Share	Collaborators	● Yos ● No									
Completeness Check	Submit	1 Reviewer Comments	5.1(a) How will informed consent be obtained and recorded?									
	Upload Participant Information and Consent Form (PICF) Type Document Name File Name Version Date Version Bize View									Delete		
			Participant information and con-	ent form Mast	er PICF January 2018	Master PICF January 2018.docx	09/01/2019	1.2	473.2 KB	Download	Delete	



Jobs, Precincts and Regions

- Continue to complete other queries if instructed in the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments
- Once the revisions/additions have been completed, the form and / or supporting documents can be resubmitted
- Select the **Submit** button under the **Actions** pane to resubmit the revised application
- The Research office will receive the submission
- The application is assigned to a HREC meeting
- Following the HREC review there may be an information request from the Ethics Committee.

8.3 Ethics Committee review request

Clarification or requests for further information from the reviewing Ethics Committee to the applicant must be managed through ERM

• The applicant is advised via an ERM email of important information regarding the application

File Messa	je 📿 Te	ell me what you want to do								
Source -	Archive Re	eply Reply Forward More *	ERM Training Team Email Reply & Delete	← To Manager ✓ Done 梦 Create New		C Actions *	Assign Mark Catego Policy * Unread *	Up -	Find P Find P Find P Related → Related → Related →	Zoom
Delete		Respond	Quic	k Steps	T ₂₁	Move	Tags	Ga .	Editing	Zoom
dono	treply@info	onetica.net O Catherine M Fa	rrington (DHHS)							
	RTANT IN	FORMATION re LNR January	,							
Letterpdf 100 KB										
Dear Investig	ator,									
Please refer	to the at	tached letter for important	information from	Default Commit	tee-VIC re	garding your	recent application f	or researc	h project LNR Jan	uary.
Application 1	ype LNI	R								
Project ID	503	365								
Review Refe	rence LNI	R/50365/DEF-2019-161998	(v2)							
Kind regards										

- A 'REQUEST FOR FURTHER INFORMATION' letter (pdf) from the HREC will include requests for further information to be provided via ERM
- The form is **unlocked** to allow the applicant to complete the requests as outlined in the attached letter

	Your Logo Here
Defau	It Committee-VIC Human Research Ethics Committee
C	REQUEST FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
10 January 2019	
Dear .	
Project ID	LNPL January 5055 LNPR50565DEF-2019-161998(v2)
(HREC). The applicat The information provi ethical and scientific	Thing an etisika application to boefault Committee-VIO Human Research Ethio Committee tions are reviewed by the HEGC to the interfering on HEGC Interfering dates. Idea to the ethics application was not sufficient for the HEEC to make a decision on the application application research project. The HTEC Directore regards further the research project.
TRe	Comment
Upicad protocol	Contribut. The protocol requires more information about how the results will be analysed.
Resubmission	
Please provide the re progress.	equested information via ERM as soon as possible, in order for your ethics application to
Please revise the su ensure that	pporting documentation as specified above. For changes to supporting documentation,
 all version dat a tracked-cha 	tes andior venion numbers are updated inges copy is uploaded to ERM.
	a ERM by 24 January 2019 in order for the application to be considered at the next HREC
Prease resubmit usin	g croit by be definely 2019 in order for the approximation to be contracted as the maximized

Respond to a request for further information from the Ethics Committee

- Depending on the request, the applicant can amend the LNR VIC form and add new documents
- Log in to ERM account
- In the Work Area, click on the Notifications tile
- Select the Message title to open and view the message

	Work Area 🐱	Notifications		
H	9	Search		
Home	Notifications	Start End		
		Display 100 notifications Please note that only the specified number of notifications will show after searching.		
		Search		
		 Message Message Information is required regarding your application. Please refer to the attached letter. 	Attachment Project Short Title LNR January	Time 08:46



•	A message box will be displayed allowing the user to view the form Press View Form to be directed to the relevant form	Sage Project Short Title Date	LNR January 10/01/2019 08:46	×
		Information is refer to the att	required regarding your application. Please ached letter.	
•	The LNR VIC will open under the Navigation tab		View Form	Close

Work Area	•	LNR January							
8 Notifications		Project Tree 🗸							
Actions ~	2 Reviewer Comments	LNR January LNR VIC LNR VIC	SSA - Administrator use onl	Y					
Completeness Check	Submit	Form Status	Review R	eference	Applicat	tion Type	Date Modifie	d	NMA
8	-	Information requested	N/A		LNR App	plication	09/01/2019 1	6:45	Project is not for NM
I NINC PIOJEC	view as PDF	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
		LNR VIC							
		Section Introduction Research Project	Questions Organisation Project Details						
	8 Notifications ~ Actions ~ Create Sub- form Completences Completences NMA Project	8 Natifications Actions Creations Creations Complexity Complexity Complexity Owner Submit P NMA Project Vew as PDF	8 Actions • Create in Contract of the sector in the secto	8 Project Tree * Actions * • Create Same • Constructions •	8 Image: Construction of the sector of t	8 Image: Construction of the constructio	8 Image: Construction of the constructio	8 Image: Status Actions • • Actions • • Creations • • Intermation requested NA NAMA Project Vice vas PDP Nation Navigation Documents Signatures Collaboration Collaboration Submissions Correspondence Intermation requested NA LNR VIC Section Guestions Introduction Organisation Organisation	B INFR. Valuation Actions • • Creation at the second of

- Select **Reviewers Comments** under the Action pane •
- A text box will be displayed of the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments

Overall Reviewer Panel Comments		
Comment	Date Added	Show Previou Submission
The protocol requires more information about how the results will be analysed.	10/01/2019 at 08:44 AM	Submission 2
Please include duration of study.	09/01/2019 at 14:56 PM	Submission 1

- Select the comment relating to the Ethics Committee request to be directed to the relevant section in the form • i.e. Project Details Q 1
- The request requires a new version of a protocol. The original version should be deleted, and the new version uploaded into the form. Previous document versions are automatically archived. •
- Select Delete

to delete the original version

	Actions 🗸											
Previous) Next	↓ Navigate	1.10	Research aims, methodol	esearch aims, methodology and significance							
View as PDF	0 Documents	Signatures										
Save	Share	Collaborators	1.11	Anticipated start date for t	he research project							
Completeness Check	Submit	Reviewer Comments	1.12	Anticipated finish date for	the research project							
			Uplo	ad protocol								
			Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete		
			Proto	col January protocol	January protocol.docx	01/01/2019	1.1	11.6 KB	Download	Delete		

- Select Upload Document to upload the revised (new) version of the protocol with the correct • version number and date
- The LNR VIC now includes the latest version ready for resubmission



	Actions 🛩												
Previous	Next	Navigate											
View as PDF	Documents	Signatures	1.10	Research aims, methodology	esearch aims, methodology and significance								
LL Save	Share	Collaborators											
Completeness Check	Submit	2 Reviewer Comments	1.11 2	Anticipated start date for the re	esearch project								
			1.12	Anticipated finish date for the	research project								
			Uploa	ad protocol									
			Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete			
			Protoc	col January protocol	January protocol.docx	10/01/2019	1.2	11.6 KB	Download	Delete			

Continue to complete other requests if instructed in the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments

Note amending a form and/or adding a new document will invalidate

any electronic signatures.



In the Actions pane select the **Submit**





The reviewing Research Office will receive the resubmission •

Approved Applications

- Applicants are informed of decisions by the HREC via email using ERM. If the application has been approved, the form is locked
- Log on to ERM and click on Notifications tile
- A formal approval letter from the HREC can be downloaded by the applicant • If the application review outcome is **not approved**, applicants are also informed via email through ERM.



9 Site Specific Assessment (SSA)

The Victorian SSA form is used to address governance at a public health organisation in Victoria.

It is the responsibility of the site Principal Investigator to complete the Victorian SSA form for their site, and to submit the form to the site Research Governance Officer (RGO).

9.1 Create a SSA

• From the HREA or LNR VIC, select Create Sub-form button under the actions pane

Act	ions	HREA 31						749
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸						
Share	2+ Roles	HREA 31 HREA						
Completeness Check	Submit							
		Action Required	Status	Review Reference	ce		Date Modified	NMA
2	6	Yes	Queried	HREC/74950/VIC	TEST-2021-257691(v	(3)	02/04/2021 17:15	Project is for NMA
Refresh	NMA Project							
-	\times	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
View as PDF	Correspond							
4		HREA						Show Inactive

- A Create Sub-form box will be displayed
- Select the jurisdiction
- Select SSA VIC from the drop-down list
- Select Create button

Create Sub-form		×
Select Jurisdiction Victoria		
Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC		
	Create	Close

The Project Tree will display the newly created SSA

Acti	ions	Project Tree 🗸						749
Project	Duplicate Form	• HREA31)					
O Delete Form	Create Subform		Specific Assessme	nt (SSA) VIC -				
Share	Roles	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
Gildle	10185	Yes	Not Sub	omitted	N/A	04/04	4/2021 14:59	Project is for NMA
Transfer Form	Completeness Check	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Submit	R efresh	Navigatori	Documenta	olgraturea	Conaboratora	Gubrilissions	Correspondence	Show Inactive S
S	÷	Site Spe	cific Ass	essmen	t (SSA) VIO			
NIMA Project		Section	Questions					

• Information from the HREA will not automatically populate the SSA



9.2 Creating SSAs for sites

The SSA for a site is created by either the **HREA** (or LNR VIC) project owner or by assigning this role to the site PI.

The creation and management of site SSAs in ERM should be determined by the CPI / delegate.

Both options (i) and (ii) are described below:

(i) HREA project owner

- The HREA project owner creates the SSA as sub-form of the HREA and becomes the SSA form owner
- The HREA / SSA owner may start the SSA then assign responsibility for its completion and submission to the site PI
- Highlight the SSA in the Project Tree
- In the **Introduction** section of the SSA form, complete question **Q 1.4** to enter the name of the site/organisation
- Select Roles+

^{Roles} button under the Actions pane

Act	tions	Site Specific Asse	A22) transa	VIC - Bary	von Hoalth
E	()	Sile Specific Asso	essment (SSA		
Previous	Next	Location Information		Name of site	
Navigate	View as PDF	1.4 Name of site/organisation	Barwon Health		V
0	ľ				
Documents	Signatures		© Infonetica Ltd 2021 Vers		
Save	Share		Terms and Conditions Data Controller Privacy Policy	Uata Processor Privacy Policy	
Roles	Collaborators				

• A Share Roles text box will be displayed

Enter the collaborator's (site PI) email address and select SSA Sharing

This level of access includes all of the following:

- ➤ read
- write
- create subforms e.g. Site Notification Form
- receive notifications

Share Roles					×
Sharing a form enables others to view/edit the same form depending on the level of acc	ess you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:				
Collaborator email Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone	SSA Sharing SSA Sharing	•	+		
				Share Role	Close

- Other research team members can be added using the $^{f t}$ button
- Select Share Role button
- The collaboratore.g. the site PI will receive an email notification about their assigned role in the project



- The collaborator logs into ERM and follows the steps as described in Assign access to the HREA
- The project (HREA) and SSA will be displayed in the Project Tree
- Using **Roles +** allows the collaborator to also view the HREA form and supporting documents. All documents uploaded to the ethics application by the CPI are automatically available when the CPI has shared the SSA (using Roles +) with the site PI
- The collaborator can continue to complete the SSA form

(ii) Assigning Role to Site Pl

- The HREA is allocated to the PI/delegate using Roles + allowing the PI access to the HREA to create their own SSA
- The HREA project owner selects the **Roles +** button under the Actions pane



- A Share Roles text box will be displayed
- Enter the collaborator's (site PI) email address and select HREA Share (read, create subforms)

Share Roles			
Sharing a form enables others to viewledit the same form depending on the level of ac	cess you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:		
Collaborator email	HREA Share (read, create subforms)	•	+

- Select Share Role
- The collaborator will receive an email notification about their assigned role in the project
- The collaborator logs into ERM and follows the steps as described in Assign access to the HREA
- The project (HREA) will be displayed in the Project Tree
- Highlight the HREA in the Project Tree
- Select the **Create Sub-form** button under the Actions pane
- A Create Sub-form text box will be displayed Select Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC Select Create

The SSA will be displayed in the Project Tree

to this form
Ŧ
Create Close

VICTORIA State Government

Acti	ions	Project Tree 🗸						7	749
Project	Duplicate Form	HREA 31)						
D elete Form	Create Subform		Specific Assessmen	<u>t (SSA) VIC -</u>					
Share	Roles	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date	Modified	ММА	
	_	Yes	Not Sub	mitted	N/A	04/04	/2021 14:59	Project is for NMA	4
Transfer Form	Completeness Check	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
Submit	Refresh	Site Spec	cific Asse	essment	t (SSA) VIC	;		Ishow In:	active \$
		Section	Questions						

• Complete the SSA form

9.3 Upload documents

All site specific supporting documents are uploaded to the SSA when completing the relevant question in the form. See table below for examples of document types.

Section	Questions (hyperlink)		Document Example
Site Research Team	Documents		Curriculum Vitae, GCP training certificates
Recruitment	Participant Details Q	4.1	Site specific PICF
Regulation	Research Agreement Q	5.2	Clinical Trial Research Agreement (CTRA)
Other Documents	Other Documents Q	7.1	Signature document, Departmental forms

• Example – Site specific PICF

Previous	() Next	Participant Details
Navigate	View as PDF	 4.1 What does the research project involve at this site? Recruitment of participants Access to records
Save	Share	Use of samplesNone of the above
Roles	Collaborators	Upload participant information and consent form (PICF) Upload Document

- Press Upload Document Upload Document to attach the site specific PICF from your local drive
- Uploaded documents will be displayed under their type, name, file name and version
- Multiple documents of the same document type can be added by selecting Upload Document multiple times
- Specify the version and date to differentiate the documents within the same document type



m	<	Upload participant informa	tion and consent form	(PICF)					
Save	Share	Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
Roles	Collaborators	Participant information and consent form	PICF Site December 2020	PICF Site December 2020.docx	01/12/2020	1	12.2 KB	Download	Delete
~	<u></u>	Upload Document							

- Documents will be displayed under the Documents tab and can be viewed or downloaded individually or together
- Select the checkbox for each corresponding document or all documents can be selected at once
 Type

Acti	ons	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date I	Modified	NMA	749
க்	C ₂	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	04/04/	2021 15:46	Project is f	
Project	Duplicate Form	C						
0	0	Navigation	Documents Signa	tures Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
Delete Form	Create Subform	<u> </u>						
<	2+	Documents						
Share	Roles	Search Document						
	~	🖉 Туре		Document Name	File Name	\$.	Version Date	Version
_	Completeness	 Participant infor 	rmation and consent form	PICF Site December 2020	PICF Site Decem	ber 2020.docx	01/12/2020	1
Transier Form	Check	 Curriculum vita 	Ð	Dr Jones CV	Dr Jones CV.docx	: (01/12/2020	1
	2	Evidence of GC	P training	Dr Jones GCP Certificate	Dr Jones GCP Ce	rtificate.docx (01/12/2020	1
Submit	Refresh	Form		Form	Form.pdf			
6	-			Showing 1 to	4 of 4 entries	View Selec	ted Downloa	d Selected

• Select the View Selected button to open the document as a PDF in a new browser

Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VI ★ ♥ ViewSelectedDocuments ★

or select the Download Selected button to download as ZIP file

9.4 Assign access to the SSA form

In ERM, only the **SSA form owner** can make the SSA available to other research team members using the **Roles+** function.

- Select the Roles+ button under the Actions pane
- Enter the collaborator's email address and select SSA Sharing. Select Share Role button

Share Roles				×
Sharing a form enables others to view/edit the same form depending on the level of ac	cess you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:			
Collaborator email	SSA Sharing	•		
Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone	SSA Sharing			
			Share Role	Close

- The collaborator will receive an email notification regarding access to the project
- The collaborator logs in to ERM and follows the steps as described in Assign access to the HREA
- The collaborator will be able to view and edit the SSA



9.5 Applying signatures

Declaration

The Principal Investigator (PI) is required to sign the Declaration by Principal Investigator page in the SSA form for endorsement of the project at the site.

	Actions 🗸		Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC - Administrator Use Only
€	Θ	1	one opechic Assessment (OSA) vio - Administrator Ose Only
Previous	Next	Navigate	Signature of Principal Investigator
View as PDF	Documents	Signatures	Declaration by Principal Investigator
Save	Share	Roles	I certify that: The information in this form is truthful and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief, and I take full responsibility at this site. I will only shart this research project after columing authorisation from the site and approval from the responsible Human Research Ethics Committee (HREC).
Collaborators	Completeness Check	L Submit	I accept responsibility for the conduct of this research project according to the principles of the <i>National Statement on Ethical Conduct in Research</i> (NHMRC, 2007). I undertake to conduct this research project in accordance with the protocols and procedures as approved by the HREC and the ethical and research arrangements of the organisation(s) involved. I undertake to conduct this research in accordance with the protocols and procedures as approved by the HREC and the ethical and research arrangements of the organisation(s) involved. I undertake to conduct this research in accordance with relevant legislation and regulations. I agree to comply with the requirements of davers or unapprecised event reporting as stipulated by the HREC and in accordance with Safety Monitoring and Reporting in Clinical Triats Involving Threapputic Goods (NHMRC, 2016). I will allow the research of the HREC Multifares ethical approval. I will inform the HREC and the research governance officer if the research project cases before the expected data. I will inform the infect of the conditions of partonal stipulated by the HREC and will cooperate with HREC monitoring requirements. I will inform the HREC and the research approval. I will expect the conditions of approval approval. I will expect to the conditions of approval approval. I will expect to the conditions of approval approval. I will expect to the conditions of approval approval. I will expect to the conditions of approval approval. I will expect to the conditions of approval approval. I will expect the the expected data in the state that the state that the state that the state that and the state that t
			Request Signature required by PI

• For departments directly involved in the research project (SSA Q 3.3), the department head is required to sign the Declaration by Head of Department

Signature of	Head of Department
• A Head of De	partment may delegate responsibility to an appropriate staff member.
	or must not approve their own research on behalf of their department. If an investigator is also Head of Department, certification must be so In to whom the Head of Department is responsible.
Who is providir	ig signature?
# Head	of Department
Head	of Department's Delegate
Name	
Department	
Declaration by	/ Head of Department
certify that	
 I have discu All investiga There are s 	the research project application named above. Issed this research project, and the resource implications for this department, with the Principal Investigator. Issed this research project, and the resource implications for this department, with the Principal Research applications are applied by the role of the resource implication of the research project have the application of the role o

• For any department that is providing support or services to the research project, the supporting department head is required to sign the Declaration by Head of Supporting Department

•	cific Assessment (SSA) VIC -
signature of P	tead of supporting Department
 A supporting de team. 	partment is any department that is providing support or services to the research project, but which does not have any member(s) on the research
A Head of Supp	porting Department may delegate responsibility to an appropriate staff member.
Who is providing	signature?
- Head of	Supporting Department
Head of	Supporting Department's Delegate
Name	
Department	
Declaration by I	Head of Supporting Department
I certify that:	
 Lam able to p 	ise project details in this SSA. enform the investigations/services indicated. set this research project with the Principal Investigator.

Signatures

The SSA form questions / information must be complete, before requesting signatures.

Any change to the SSA form will invalidate signatures.

Using a combination of signature methods e.g. wet ink signatures, attaching other evidence, electronic signatures should be sought LAST as the form will be locked once electronic signature requests have been made. Multiple electronic signatures can occur.

* Signatories must have an ERM account to provide electronic signature



The SSA form owner / user may obtain signatures as follows:

To use Wet ink signature

- Using the **View as PDF** button from the Actions Pane, custom print the relevant Declaration page and obtain the signature from the PI /Head of Department /Supporting Head of Department. Scan and save to your local drive as a PDF
- Navigate to Section Other Documents of the SSA to find [Other Documents]
- Other Documents opens to Q 7.1 of the SSA form to attach the Declaration page
- Select Upload document
 Upload Document
 to upload the Declaration page from your local drive to the
 SSA form

Act	ions	Supporting Documents
Previous	Next	Any additional SSA supporting documents should be uploaded below. Do not upload <i>ethics</i> supporting documents . Once your SSA is submitted, the site RGO can access the associated <i>ethics</i>
Navigate	View as PDF	documents in their research office ERM account.
Documents	Signatures	 7.1 Are any other SSA supporting documents provided (in addition to the documents already uploaded within this SSA)? Yes
Save	Share	No
1 +	<u></u>	Upload Document

To attach other evidence to indicate agreement

- Navigate to Section 'Other Documents' of the SSA to find Other Documents'
- Other Documents opens to Q 7.1 of the SSA form to attach the signature document
- Select Upload Document
 Upload Document
 to upload the signature document from your local drive to
 the SSA form
- Other supporting documents can also be uploaded in this section

To request an Electronic Signature

To request an electronic signature from the Head of Department, Supporting Head of Department or Principal
Investigator select Request Signature button

Actions		Who is providing signature?				
Previous	Next	 Head of Department Head of Department's Delegate 				
1 Navigate	View as PDF	Declaration by Head of Department				
O Documents	V Signatures	Name Department				
L Save	Share	I certify that: • I have read the research project application named above. • I have discussed this research project, and the resource implications for this department, with the Principal Investigator.				
Roles	Collaborators	 All investigators/students from my department involved in the research project have the skills, training and experience necessary to undertake their role. There are suitable and adequate facilities and resources for the research project to be conducted at this site. I support this research project being carried out using such resources. 				
Completeness	Submit	Request Signature Sign				



Request a signature	×
Enter the email address of the person you want to sign this	rm
Email Address	
Enter a message (Optional, max 800 characters)	
_	
	close

Enter the signatory's ERM email address and select Request

- ٠ The requested signatory will receive an email notification for a signature
- The signatory logs into ERM ٠

•

From the Work Area the signatory selects the Signatures tile to open the request ٠

ERM AI	pplications Hon	ne Contacts Help -
V	Vork Area 🐱	Work Area
#	1	VVOLK ALEA
Home	Notifications	General
	Actions 🕶	Notifications Signatures Transfers Shared
Create Folder	Delete Folder Create Project	1 1 0 0
Oelete Project	Duplicate Transfer	Folders

New requests are highlighted .

Signatures								
Search Signatures								
Туре	Project Title	Project ID	Requesting User	Message	Requested Date	Response Date	Status	Action
Head of Department	HREA 31	74950	Ms Catherine Farrington	Please sign the SSA form	04/04/2021 16:59		Requested	View Form
Principal Investigator	LNR April	75014	Ms Catherine Farrington	Please sign the LNR form	04/04/2021 13:27	04/04/2021 13:30	Signed	View PDF
Co-ordinating Principal Investigator/Researcher	HREA 02	75001	Ms Catherine Farrington	Please sign the HREA	02/04/2021 14:50	02/04/2021 14:55	Invalidated	View Form

- Under the Action tab, select View Form View Form to review the SSA form. The signatory has Read access • only
- For endorsement of the SSA application, select **Sign** button under the Actions pane •

Actions	Project Tree \star						
Project Completeness Or NMA Project Sign		A Specific Assessment (SS	SA) <u>VIC - Admi</u>	nistrator Use Only			
	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
Reject View as PDF	Yes	Not Submitte	d	N/A	04/04	/2021 17:16	Project
Correspond	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
	Site Spe	cific Asses	sment	(SSA) VIC	;		۷
	Section	Questions					
	Introduction	Information Project	ct Location E	Ethics Review Site Addi	tion		



- The ethics application (**HREA**) can be viewed if the HREA owner has used **Roles +** from the SSA level to share the form with the signatory
- A Sign Form text box is displayed

The signatory enters their ERM log in details to sign the form

Select Sign

Sign

Sign Form		×
Please enter your login	details in order to sign this form:	
Username	Password	
		Sign Close

- The applicant receives an email notification indicating the signature request has been accepted by the signatory i.e. the form has been signed
- Repeat the signatory process for electronic signatures for other signatories
- All signatures must be obtained before the SSA can be submitted to the site Research Governance Officer
- Once the signature is complete the application is ready for submission



10 Submission and review process - SSA form

Ensure the SSA form is complete and all site documents are uploaded and **signatures completed**. When the SSA is submitted, the site Research Governance Officer (RGO) automatically has access to all documents uploaded to the main (ethics) form when the ethics application has been submitted via ERM to a Victorian or Queensland HREC. This means that only site governance documents should be uploaded to the SSA form and submitted for authorisation.

10.1 Submission

Act	tions	Project Tree 🖌					
Project	Duplicate Form						
Create Subform	Share	Action Required	2 Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC - A	Review Reference	Date N	Acdified	NMA
Roles	Transfer Form	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	04/04/2	2021 17:16	Project is for
Completenes	s Submit	Navigation	Documents Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
S NMA Project	View as PDF	Site Spe	cific Assessme	nt (SSA) VIC	0		✓ Sho
\times		Section	Questions	Ethics Review Site Add	ition		

• The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections. If complete, the form is ready to be submitted

Submit	×
Complete: Your form is complete and ready to submit	
	Submit Close
	Close

- Select the Submit
- The system will automatically submit the application to the site/organisation selected in Q 1.4 of the SSA
- Following the submission, a unique identification code is generated. It is composed of six parts - e.g. SSA/60889/VICTEST-2020-201446(v1)

button

Application typeSSAProject ID60889 - ERM project numberOrganisation/hospital codeVICTESTYear2020- year of submissionSubmission number201446 - submission version numberVersion numberv1



Recall an application

Any changes made to the submission will INVALIDATE all electronic signatures and will require all signature requests again

- Once the SSA application has been submitted, a recall option becomes available
- The form can be recalled until the submission is actioned by the Research Office
- This action removes the submitted application from the Research Office's ERM account
- Select the **Recall** button under the Actions Pane to recall the submission and make any changes / additions
- Check that any electronic signatures are completed
- Select the **Submit** button. The application will be resubmitted

10.2 Responding to a query from the Research Office

The SSA application may queried by the Research Office for further clarification or changes, additions (e.g. supporting documents). The form is unlocked for the applicant to complete the edits/revisions.

The form Status has changed from 'Submitted' to 'Partial application received' indicating the application is incomplete.

Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Yes	Partial application received	SSA/74950/VICTEST-2021-257728(v1)	05/04/2021 13:00	Project is for NMA

• The applicant is advised via an ERM email of important information regarding their SSA application

donotreply@infonetica.net • Catherine M Ferrington (0+#5) IMPORTANT INFORMATION re New Years Eve
98 KB
Dear Investigator,
Please refer to the attached letter for important information from Default Committee-VIC regarding your recent application for research project New Years Eve .
Application Type SSA
Project ID 50227
Review Reference SSA/50227/DEF-2019-161533(v1)
Kind regards,

• A 'REQUEST FOR INFORMATION' letter (pdf) from the Research Office will include details for further information to be provided via ERM





To access the query

• In the Work Area, click on the Notifications tile



• Select the Message title to open and view the message

Work Area 🗸	Notifications		0
Home Notifications	Search		
Home Notifications	Start End		
	Display 100 notifications Please note that only the specified number of notifications will show after searching.		
	SterrCh		
	the stage the stag	Attachment Project Short Title Tim	ie 🗸
	 Information is required regarding your application. Please refer to the attached letter. 	New Years Eve 13:19	9 🗙

- A Message box will be displayed allowing the user to view the form
- Press View Form
 to be directed to the relevant form

Mes	sage		×
	Project Short Title Date	New Years Eve 02/01/2019 13:19	
	Information is refer to the attac	equired regarding your application. Please ched letter.	
		View Form Cle	ose

- The SSA form will open under the Navigation tab
- Select Reviewers Comments

under the Action pane

V	Vork Area	~	New Year	rs Eve				
Home	8 Notifications		Project Tree 🛩					
_	Actions 🗸		O New Year	rs Eve				
Project	Create Sub-	1 Reviewer Comments	O HRE		(SSA) VIC -			
Share	Roles	Completeness Check	Form Status		Review Reference	Application Type	Date Modified	NMA
Submit	Retresh	P NMA Project	Partial application re-	celved	N/A	SSA Application	02/01/2019 13:13	Project is not for NMA
View as PDF	Correspond		N	avigation Docum	ents Signatures	Collaborators Submissions	Correspondence History	
			Site Spe	cific Asses	sment (SSA)	VIC		III Sho
			Section	Questions	Project Location Ethics Re	View Site Addition		

• A text box will be displayed of the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments

Overall Reviewer Panel Comments			×
Comment	PICF requiring edits	Date Added	Show Previous Comments
Site contact details are missing from PICF.		02/01/2019 at 13:16 PM	Latest Submission
			Close

• Select the comment to be directed to the relevant section in the SSA form, e.g. to Q 4.1 Participant Details



As the query requires a new version of a document, the original version should be deleted, and the new • version uploaded into the form. Previous document versions are automatically archived.

	<	Upload participant informa	tion and consent form	(PICF)					
Save	Share				Version				
		Туре	Document Name	File Name	Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
+	2	Participant information and	PICF Site December	PICF Site December	01/12/2020	1	12.2	Download	Dele
oles	Collaborators	consent form	2020	2020.docx	01/12/2020		KB	Download	Dele

- to upload the revised (new) version of the document with the correct Select Upload Document • version number and date
- The SSA form now includes the latest version ready for resubmission

1 Navigate	View as PDF	Upload participant informat	tion and consent form	(PICF)					
0 Documents	Signatures	Туре	Document Name	File Name	Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete
E Save	Share	Participant information and consent form	PICF Site December 2020	PICF Site December 2020.docx	31/12/2020	2	12.2 KB	Download	Delete
0.	fe.	Upload Document							

- Once the revisions/additions have been completed, the form and / or supporting documents can be • resubmitted
- In the Actions pane select the Submit •

•



button to resubmit

Acti	ons	Project Tree 🗸					
Project	Duplicate Form)				
Delete Form	Create Subform		Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC - Ad				
<	2+	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
Share	Roles	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	04/04	2021 18:16	Project is for NM
Transfer Form	Completeness Check	Navigation	Documents Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Submit	Refresh	Site Spec	ific Assessmer	nt (SSA) VIC	>		✓ Show In
0	-	Section	Questions				
0	~~	Introduction	Information Project Location	Ethics Review Site Addi	ition		

- The Research Office will receive the submission •
- The SSA application is assessed by the Research Governance Officer (RGO) •
- Following the assessment there may be an information request from the RGO ٠



10.3 RGO review request

Clarification or requests for further information from the RGO to the applicant must be managed through ERM.

The form is unlocked for the applicant to complete the edits/revisions.

The form Status has changed from 'Submitted' to 'Information requested'-

Action Re	equired Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Yes	Information re	quested SSA/74950/VICTEST-2021-257730	(v2) 05/04/2021 13:25	Project is for NMA

• The applicant is advised via an ERM email of important information regarding the SSA application

donotreply@infonetica.net Catherine M Farrington (0+HS) IMPORTANT INFORMATION re New Years Eve
Letter,pdf 97 KB
Dear Investigator,
Please refer to the attached letter for important information from Default Committee-VIC regarding your recent application for research project New Years Eve .
Application Type SSA
Project ID 50227
Review Reference SSA/50227/DEF-2019-161536(v2)
Kind regards,

• A 'REQUEST FOR INFORMATION' letter (pdf) from the RGO will include requests for further information to be provided via ERM

	Your Logo Here
	CH GOVERNANCE / SITE SPECIFIC ASSESSMENT (SSA) REQUEST FOR INFORMATION Default Committee-VIC Research Governance Officer
2 January 2019	
Dear ,	
Project Title Project ID Review Referenc	New Years Eve 50227 ce SSA/60227/DEF-2019-161536(v2)
	mitting a research governance/SSA application to Default Committee-VIC . The application d by the research governance officer (RGO) and additional information is required.
Information to be	e Provided
1 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	ore information about the funding source.
Submission	
 all version of 	SA form in ERM as specified above. For changes to supporting documentation, ensure that: dates and/or version numbers are updated hanges copy is uploaded to ERM.
	requested information via ERM as soon as possible, in order for your research application to progress.
The research proje granted.	ect cannot commence at this site until research governance/SSA authorisation has been
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
If you require any f	further information, please contact the RGO via the ERM 'Correspond' button or .

Respond to a request for further information from the RGO

- The applicant can amend the SSA and add new documents if requested by the RGO
- Log into ERM account
- In the Work Area, click on the Notifications tile
- Select the Message title to open and view the message

Notif	ications				
Search					
Start	End				
Display	Please note that only the specified number of notifications will show after searching.	100 notifications			
	Search				
÷	# Message	4	Attachment 🗄	Project Short Title	🕴 Time 🖕
	Information is required regarding your application. Please refer to the attache	d letter.	Ø	New Years Eve	14/01/2019

• A message box will be displayed allowing the user to view the SSA form



Press **View Form** to be directed to the relevant section in the SSA form

Select Reviewers Comments under the Actions pane

The SSA will open under the Navigation tab

Me	ssage		×
	Project Short Title Date	New Years Eve 02/01/2019 15:26	
	Information is n refer to the attac	equired regarding your application. Please ched letter.	
		View Form	Close

1	Work Area	*	New Years E	ve						
Home	8 Notifications		Project Tree 🗸							
ំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំ	Actions •	2	New Years Eve HREA							
Project	Create Sub- form	Reviewer Comments	O Site Spe	cific Assessment (SSA) Vi	C -					
		Completeness Check	Form Status	Review	Review Reference		Application Type		Date Modified	
Submit	R efresh	Ø NMA Project	Information requested	N/A		SSA Ap	plication	03/01/2019 0	9:41	Project is not for NMA
View as PD	DF Correspond		Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
			Site Specific	Assessme	ent (SSA)	VIC				St
			Section Introduction	Questions Information Project	t Location Ethics F	Review Site Addition				

A text box will be displayed of the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments

Overall Reviewer Panel Comments		×
Comment	Date Added	Show Previous Comments
Please provide more information about the funding source.	02/01/2019 at 15:24 PI	M Latest Submission
		Close

Select a comment e.g. comment requesting more information about the funding source, to be directed to the relevant section in the form i.e. Q 6.1 Type(s) of funding

Previous) Next	Funding
√ Navigate	View as PDF	6.1 Type(s) of funding Commercially sponsored
Documents	Signatures	 Sponsored, other (e.g. collaborative group) External (e.g. NHMRC) Internal/Departmental
Save	Share	Other Other
Roles	Scollaborators	Source Philanthropic funds raised from 2020 charity event AUS 100000 per year 🔻

- Enter the requested information as instructed in the Overall Reviewer Panel Comments
- Continue to complete other requests if necessary .

To re-submit the form what signature/s are required? 1. The PI signs. For minor changes the Research Office has all signatures on the initial submission 2. Other signatories to sign if a substantial change or required by local policy Check with other signatories and the Research Office policy before requesting signatures and re-submission In the Actions pane select the **Submit** button to resubmit

٠

The reviewing RGO will receive the resubmission



Authorised Applications

- Applicants are informed of decisions by the RGO via email using ERM. If the application has been authorised, the form is locked
- Log on to ERM and click on Notifications tile
- A formal authorisation letter from the RGO can be downloaded by the applicant
- If the application review outcome is not authorised, applicants are also informed via email through ERM.



11 Minimal Dataset Form (MDF)

When the ethical review of a research application is in a jurisdiction that does not use ERM, a Minimal Dataset Form (MDF) is used to create the SSA form for sites in Victoria and Queensland.

It is a proxy form that is created **once only** for the research application.

The site Principal Investigator uses ERM to complete the SSA and submit to the site Research Governance Officer.

- The CPI / delegate logs onto ERM
- Select Create Project Create Project button under the Actions pane to create a new Main Form
- Enter the Project Title, jurisdiction and select **MDF** from the Main Form drop-down list Select **Create** button

Create Project	×
Project Title* (Max 200 characters)	
MDF April	
Jurisdiction*	
Victoria	
Form*	
Please select	
Please select HREA	1
Legacy Application Replacement Form VIC LNR VIC	
MDF Quality Assurance (QA) VIC	Create Close

• The MDF will appear in the Project Tree

Ac	tions	MDF Apri	1					7
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 🗸						
Share	Completeness Check	MDF April)					
Submit	Refresh	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	odified	NMA
9	-	Yes	Not Sub	mitted	N/A	05/04/20	021 14:03	Project is not for NMA
NMA Project	View as PDF							
\times		Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Correspond								
		MDF						Show Inst

- Complete the questions in the MDF
- Enter the unique ethics reference number indicating where the ethics application was reviewed and approved e.g. HREC/19/CAL/123
- Select the **Navigate** button to move back to the Project Tree and select the **NMA Project** button under the Actions pane
- A **NMA Project** text box is displayed
- Select 'Project is NMA' and Save
 Save

For further information on NMA see <u>NMA research governance/SSA application</u> on the **Clinical trials and** research webpage



6

Save Close

NMA Project

Project is NMA

Mark this project as NMA if it is to be reviewed under the National Mutual Ac

- Select Upload Document Upload Document to upload a copy of the HREA reviewed by the NMA HREC into the MDF
- Select the relevant supporting documents e.g. Copy of ethics approval letter, Master PICF, protocol associated with the ethics application.



• Select **Upload Document** to upload the PICF, protocol and other relevant documents from your local drive.

Ensure the Victorian Specific Module (VSM) is selected if a VSM was submitted as part of the ethics application. The CPI should provide a copy of the WORD document of the VSM that was submitted to the reviewing HREC.

Act	ions	Attach any other relevant documents associated with conducting your research project.
Previous	() Next	 Ensure that you give meaningful and unique names to your files before uploading them. Enter the description in the document name field. The date and version fields are mandatory.
A Navigate	View as PDF	Participant information and consent form
Documents	Signatures	Upload Document
	<	Project Description/Protocol
Save	Share	Upload Document
Collaborators	Completeness Check	Victorian specific module (VSM)
Submit		Upload Document

- Select **Submit** button under the Actions pane. The **Submit** action is a systems action and does not submit the form to a HREC
- The site RGO will have access to the uploaded ethics documents in the MDF when the site SSA is submitted
- From the MDF the CPI / delegate creates the SSA as a sub-form



	tions	MDF Apri	I					7
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree 😽						
Share	Completeness Check	MDE April MDE						
<u></u>	3							
Submit	Refresh	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
9	•	Yes	Not Subm	itted	N/A	05/04/20	21 14:03	Project is not for NMA
NMA Project	View as PDF							
\times		Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Correspond								
		MDF						Show Ina

- Select the jurisdiction and Site Specific Assessment (SSA)
 Select Create button
- The CPI / delegate selects the **Roles +** button under the Actions pane to enable the site PI access to the SSA for its completion and submission to the site RGO
- Enter the collaborator's (site PI) ERM email address and select SSA Sharing
 Select Share Role
 Share Role

haring a form enables others to viewiedit the same form de	pending on the level of acce	ess you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:			
Collaborator email		SSA Sharing	• +		
Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone		SSA Sharing			
				Share Role	Cle

• The site PI will receive an email notification and logs into ERM to complete and submit their SSA.


12 Legacy Application Replacement Form (LARF)

The Legacy Application Replacement Form (LARF) is required for a Victorian -only research project when the original ethics application was not in the previous database system used by research offices (AU RED). It cannot be used for NMA research projects.

The LARF is not an ethics application form; it is a proxy form that allows sub-forms e.g. post approval forms to be created in ERM. Only **one** LARF is required for the research application.

Consult the reviewing organisation's research office before creating a LARF to confirm whether the form is required.

- The CPI / delegate logs onto ERM
 - Select Create Project button under the Actions pane to create a new Main Form
- Enter the Project Title, jurisdiction and select Legacy Application Replacement Form from the main form
 drop-down list
 Select Create button
 Create Project Title* (Max 200 characters)
 LARF April

Jurisdiction

Please select HREA



Acti	ons	LARF Ap	·il					
Project	Create Subform	Project Tree V						
Share	Completeness Check		Application Replacem	nent Form VIC				
	_	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	odified	NMA
8		Yes	Not Subm	hitted	N/A	05/04/20	021 14:27	Project is not for NM
NMA Project	VIEW as PDr	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
		Legacy A	pplicatio	on Repl	acement F	orm VIC		Show

• Complete the questions in the LARF

•

- Select the **Submit** button under the Actions pane
- The form will be submitted to the organisation that reviewed the original application
- From the LARF the CPI/delegate can create post approval sub-forms by selecting the **Create Subform** action button
- Select the jurisdiction and appropriate post-approval form e.g. Ethics Amendment Request



Clos

		Create Subform	×
	Select Create	Select the sub-form that you would like to apply to this form Ethics Amendment Request VIC	
			Create Close
•	The CPI / delegate selects the Roles + but research team members	tton under the Actions pane to share the	LARF with other
•	Enter the collaborator's email address and select Select Share Role	ct Post Approval/Authorisation Subforms	

Share Roles			×
Sharing a form enables others to viewiedit the same form depending on the level of access you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:			
Collaborator email Post Approval/Authorisation Subforms	+		
Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone			
		Share Role	Close

- Complete the questions in the post-approval form
- Sign the post -approval form
- Submit the post-approval form

Jobs, Precincts and Regions

13 Quality Assurance (QA) Application Form

The Quality Assurance (QA) VIC form can be used for the submission of the following types of projects:

- clinical audit
- quality assurance
- evaluation activities
- a project that involves the potential for no more than negligible risk

Consult with the organisation's Research Office before creating the QA application. The Research Office will advise whether the QA form is the right choice for the project.

The applicant logs into ERM

- Select Create Project button under the Actions pane to create a new Main Form
- Enter the Project Title, jurisdiction and select Quality Assurance (QA) VIC from the main form drop-down list Select Create



Upload Document

Create Project		×
Project Title* (Max 200 characters)		
QA April		
Jurisdiction*		
Victoria •		
Form*		
Please select	¥	
Please select HREA		
Legacy Application Replacement Form VIC		
LNR VIC	Create	
MDF Quality Assurance (QA) VIC	Create C	lose

- The QA form will appear under the Project Tree
- Complete the questions in the QA form
- The **Supporting Documents** section will enable supporting documents e.g. a Questionnaire to • be uploaded into the application

Actions	Are there any other supporting documents for the project?					
	• Yes					
Previous Next	◎ No					
Navigate View as PDF	Select the documents					
	Advertising material					
OI D	Case report form					
Documents Signatures	Copy of other approval					
	Data management plan					
	GP/consultant information					
- ·	Interview schedule					
Save Share	Invitation to participant					
	Letter of support					
	Participant information and consent form (PICF) (tracked)					
Collaborators Completeness Check	Peer review					
Ondex	Protocol (tracked)					
<u> </u>	Questionnaire					

- Select Upload Document
- Select Submit

button under the Actions pane to submit the application to the reviewing organisation.



14 Post Approval

Ethical Review Manager (ERM)

Post-approval and Post-authorisation





Once a research project has been ethically approved, any change to its design or conduct must be approved by the reviewing HREC or ethics review body.

Post approval information should also be submitted to the reviewing organisation.

In ERM, Post Approval forms are created as sub-forms from the original ethics application (HREA) to request amendments and provide information / reports relating to the research project as required by the reviewing HREC.

Sub-forms for post approval

- Ethics Amendment Request
- Project Notification Form
- Project Progress Report
- Project Final Report
- Site Closure Report

- Safety Report
- Annual Safety Report
- Serious Breach Report
- Suspected Breach Report

14.1 Create a sub-form

- The CPI / delegate logs in to ERM
- Select the project title to display the project under the Project Tree and highlight the HREA
- Select Create Sub-form button under the Actions pane to create a new sub-form
- Select the jurisdiction and the sub-form e.g. Ethics Amendment Request VIC
 Select Create
 Create

0

Create Sub	-form		>
Select Jurisdiction			
Victoria	•		
Select the sub-form ti	hat you would like to appl	y to this form	

• The Ethics Amendment Request VIC form will be displayed under the Project Tree

Work /	Area 🐱	Project Tree 😽						
Home	36 Notifications							
Actio	ons 🗸		Site Specific Assess	ment (SSA) VIC -				
Project	Duplicate		Ethics Amendment F	Request VIC -				
	Duplicate Form	Form Status	Review	w Reference	Date	Modified	NMA	
Delete Form	Share	Not Submitted	N/A		22/04	/2020 15:45	Project is	not for NMA
2+ Roles	Transfer Form	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Completeness Check	s Submit	Ethics A	mendme	nt Reque	est VIC			Show I
~	~	Section		Questions				



14.2 Complete a sub-form - Ethics Amendment request

- Complete the questions in the form, in this example the Ethics Amendment Request form •
- Depending on the amendment category, new versions of documents e.g. PICF, protocol can be attached to . the amendment form

Actions Previous Next	Participant information and consent forms (PICFs) to be uploaded PICF with tracked changes PICF (clean version)
Navigate View as P	Upload amended PICF (clean version)
Documents Signature	Upload Document
	Protocol type(s) to be uploaded
Save Share	 Protocol with tracked changes Protocol (clean version)
Roles Collaborat	Upload amended protocol (clean version)
Completeness Submit	

•

Select Upload Document Upload Document to attach the amendment documents from your local drive

Specify the version and date •

Act	ions						Version		<u>۱</u>			
۲	$\overline{}$	Туре		Document Name	File Name		Date	Version	Size	View	Delete	
Previous	Next	Participant and conser		PICF Master 31 Dece 2020. Version 2 (clea			31/12/2020	2	18.5 KB	Download	Delete	
1 Navigate	View as PDF	Upload Do	ocument									
D ocuments	Signatures		Protocol type(s) to be uploaded									
Save	Share		 Protocol with tracked changes Protocol (clean version) 									
2+	2	Upload a	mended prot	ocol (clean versio	n)							
Roles	Collaborators	Туре	Document Na	me	File Name		Version Date	Version	Size	View	Delete	
Completeness			December Holi version 2 (clea		December Holidays protocol ve (clean).docx	ersion 2	01/12/2020	2	14.2 KB	Download	Delete	

- Documents will be displayed under the Documents tab and can be viewed or downloaded individually or ٠ together
- Select the checkbox for each corresponding document or all documents can be selected at once ٠



Туре

1

Act	ions	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	05/04	/2021 15:11	Project is for N	7495	0 0
Project	Duplicate Form	Navigation	Documents Signatures	s Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History		
Delete Form	Share	Documents							
Roles	Transfer Form	Search Document	Document Na	ame	File Name		Version Date	Version	Size
Completeness	Submit	 Participant inf consent form 	ormation and PICF Master 3 Version 2 (clear	31 December 2020. an)	PICF Master 31 De (clean).docx	ecember 2020. Version 2	31/12/2020	2	18.5 KB
Check		Protocol	December Ho (clean)	lidays protocol version 2	December Holiday (clean).docx	s protocol version 2	01/12/2020	2	14.2 KB
Refresh	S NMA Project	Form	Form		Form.pdf				
•				Showing 1 to	o 3 of 3 entries	View Selected	Download Sel	ected	

• Select the View Selected button to open the document as a PDF in a new browser

	🔊 Ethics Amendment Request VIC - 🗙	✤ ViewSelectedDocuments ×
--	------------------------------------	---------------------------

or select the Download Selected button to download as ZIP file

14.3 Allowing others to access post approval forms

Using Roles + allows other research team members access to a post approval form.

• Highlight the post approval form e.g. Ethics Amendment Request in the Project Tree

Work A	36 Notifications	Project Tree V		ment (SSA) VIC -				
Project	Duplicate Form		Ethics Amendment F					
0	<	Form Status	Review	v Reference	Date	Modified	NMA	
Delete Form	Share	Not Submitted	N/A		22/04	/2020 15:45	Project is	not for NMA
Roles	Transfer Form	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Completeness Check	Submit	Ethics A	mendme	nt Reque	est VIC			Show
~	~	Section		Questions				

- Select **Roles** + button under the Action pane
- Enter the collaborator's ERM email address and select Post Approval/Authorisation Subform
- Other collaborators can be added by selecting button

Sharing a form enables	others to view/edit the s	same form depending on the level of acces	s you give them. Please select the users you	wish to share this form	with:	
Collaborator email			Post Approval/Authorisation Subforms		• 🛨	
Name	Role	Given on	Post Approval/Authorisation Subforms	Remove	Remove All Permissions	
Dr Bernice Davies	SSA Sharing	Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VIC	- Administrator Use Only	Remove	Remove	

• Select Share Role

• The collaborator receives an email notification on their assigned role in t	theproject
---	------------

• The collaborator at the site can view the amendment form and associated documents



14.4 Applying signatures

The Coordinating Principal Investigator is required to sign the Declaration page to indicate the information is complete and correct. To request an electronic signature:

In the Declaration section, select Request Signature
 Request Signature

Act	ions	Ethics Amendment Request VIC - 74
۲		Ethics Amendment Request Vic -
Previous	Next	Declaration
Navigate	View as PDF	Declaration of Coordinating Principal Investigator
0	18	The information provided is complete and correct.
Documents	Signatures	The project is being conducted in keeping with the conditions of approval of the reviewing HREC (and subject to any changes subsequently approved).
Save	Share	The project is being conducted in compliance with the National Statement on Ethical Conduct in Human Research (NHMRC, 2007) and Safety Monitoring and Reporting in Clinical Trials Involving Therapeutic Goods (NHMRC, 2016), or as amended.
2+	<u>.</u>	Request Signature Sign

button

- The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections
- Enter the signatory's ERM email address and message
 Select Request

Request a signature	×
Enter the email address of the person you want to sign this form	
Email Address	
Can you please sign the amendment form	
Request	Close

- The requested signatory will receive an email notification for a signature, a message and link to ERM Login/Signatures page
- The signatory logs into ERM
- From the Work Area the signatory selects Signatures tile to open the request

	Work Area 🗸				
Home	1 Notifications	Work Are	d		
	Actions 🖌	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared
Create Folde	er Delete Folder Create Project	1	1	0	0
Oelete Projec	t Duplicate Transfer	Folders			

New requests are highlighted. Select View Form

to review the ethics amendment request form

Signatures													
Search Signatures													
ђ	Project Title	Project ID	Requesting User	¢	Messag	e	¢	Requested Date	•	Response	Status	¢	Action
Coordinating Principal Investigator	HREA 31	74950	Ms Catherine Farrington		-	please sign the ethics ent request		05/04/2021 15:43			Request	ted	View Form
Head of Department	HREA 31	74950	Ms Catherine Farrington		Please s	ign the SSA form		04/04/2021 17:15		04/04/2021 17:41	Invalidat	ted	View Form



For endorsement of the amendment, select Sign .

Acti	ions	Ethics Amendment Request VIC -				
\bigotimes	()	Ethics Amendment Request VIC -				
Previous	Next	Read access only.				
1 Navigate	View as PDF	Guidance				
Sign	X Reject	Ethics Amendment Once a research project has been ethically approved, any change to its design or conduct must be approved by the reviewing				
		Human Research Ethics Committee (HREC) or ethics review body.				
Completeness		This Ethics Amendment Request must be completed and submitted to the reviewing HREC or ethics review body.				
Check		An amendment to a research project may also impact research governance/site specific assessment (SSA). To notify each				

0 Sign

button under the Actions pane

A Sign Form text box is displayed The signatory enters their FRM log in details to sign the form

The signalory enters then	I ERIVITO Y ITI UELA	is to sign the

Select Sign button

Sign Form		×
Please enter your login detail	s in order to sign this form:	
Username	Password	
		Sign Close

- The applicant receives an email notification indicating the signature request has been accepted, i.e. the form has been signed
- The form is ready for submission

14.5 Submission and review

- Navigate to the Actions pane and select the **Submit** button
- The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections. If complete the form is • ready to be submitted
- Submit . button Select Submit •
- The post approval form will be received by the reviewing organisation's Research Office. . How to respond to queries and requests from the Research Office is described in Submission and Review Process



15 Post Authorisation

15.1 Create a sub-form

Post Authorisation forms provide information / reports relating to a research project to the site Research Governance Officer (RGO).

In ERM, Post Authorisation forms are sub-forms created from the Site Specific Assessment (SSA).

Sub-forms for post authorisation

- Complaint Report
- Non-serious Breach / Deviation Report
- Site Audit Report
- Site Governance Amendment Request
 - > To notify the RGO of an amendment that has been approved by the reviewing ethics committee or
 - > To notify the RGO of a governance-only amendment that does not require ethical approval
- Site Notification Form
- Site Progress Report

Create a Sub-form

- The PI / delegate logs in to ERM
- Select the project title to display the project under the Project Tree and highlight the SSA for your organisation
- Select Create Sub-form button under the Actions pane to create a new sub-form e.g. Site Governance Amendment Request Select Create



• The Site Governance Amendment Request form will be displayed under the Project Tree

Work	Area 🗸	O HREA 0	3					
Home	36 Notifications		Site Specific Assess				_	
Actio	ons 🗸		Site Governance	e Amendment Reque	est -			
ភំ			Ethics Amendment F	Request VIC -				
Project	Duplicate Form	Form Status	Review	w Reference	Date	Modified	NMA	
0	<	Not Submitted	N/A			/2020 16:17		not for NMA
Delete Form	Share							
Roles	Transfer Form	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Completeness Check	s Submit	Site Gov	vernance	Amendm	nent Requ	lest		⊮ S
~	^	Section		Questions				



15.2 Complete a sub-form – Site Governance Amendment request

The steps for completing a Site Governance Amendment Request will depend upon which ethics committee reviewed the amendment request. Either (i) or (ii) apply:

- (i) If the amendment request was submitted to an ethics committee in Victoria, ensure the Ethics Amendment Request form owner (CPI / delegate) has assigned the site PI/ delegate access to the ethics amendment submission and documents. See <u>Allowing others to access post approval forms</u>
- In the Project Tree, select the Ethics Amendment Request VIC form
- Working under the **Documents** tab select **View Selected** button to open selected documents e.g. Ethics Amendment Request form, Master PICF as a PDF in a new browser or select **Download Selected** to download the Ethics Amendment Request form and selected documents e.g. Master PICF as a zip file, and save to your local drive
- Return to the Site Governance Amendment Request form in the Project Tree
- Upload a copy of the:
 - Ethics Amendment Request to the reviewing ethics committee (PDF copy of the amendment form that was saved from the zip file)
 - Amendment approval from the reviewing ethics committee (PDF copy of amendment approval letter/certificate)
- Other documents if relevant, e.g. the protocol and Site PICF are uploaded in the following documents page or

the Amended Documents section

Actions		Site Governance Amendment Request -	74
۲	()	Site Governance Amendment Request -	
Previous	Next	Documents	
1	-		
Navigate	View as PDF	Are there any amended documents to be provided to the site RGO?	
Ø	12	Yes	
Documents	Signatures	No	
	<	Which documents are amended?	
Save	Share	Protocol	
2+	5	 Participant information sheet and consent form(s) 	
Roles	Collaborators	Investigator brochure	
Roles	Conaborators	Research agreement	
	+	Certificate of insurance	
×		Other	

Select Upload Document

Upload Document to upload the relevant documents from your local drive

- Specify the version and date
- Continue to complete the form
- (ii) If the amendment request was submitted to an ethics committee outside of Victoria, the Minimal
 Dataset Form (MDF) is used to enable the Site Governance Amendment Request form to be completed
- In the Project Tree, select the site SSA for your organisation
 Select the Create Sub-form action to create a Site Governance Amendment Request form



Act	ions	Project Tree 🗸						7
Project	Duplicate Form	<u>MDF April</u> <u>MDF</u>)					
Delete Form	Share		Site Specific Assessr					
Roles	Transfer Form	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Mo	dified	NMA
		Yes	Not Subr	nitted	N/A	05/04/20	021 16:11	Project is not for NMA
Completeness Check	s Submit							
2	6	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Refresh	NMA Project							Show Ina
-	\times	Site Gov	ernance	Amend	ment Requ	iest		

- Upload a copy of the: .
 - Amendment submission to the reviewing HREC (PDF copy provided by the CPI/delegate) \geq
 - Amendment approval from the reviewing HREC (PDF copy of approval letter/certificate provided by the \triangleright CPI/delegate)
- Other documents if relevant, e.g. the protocol are uploaded as described in (i) •
- Other site specific documents e.g. Site PICF can be uploaded in Amendment Documents section •
- Continue to complete the form. .

15.3 Allowing others to access post authorisation forms

Using Roles + allows other research team members access to a post authorisation form

Highlight the post authorisation form e.g. Site Governance Amendment Request in the Project Tree •

Work A	Area 🗸	O HREA 0	3					
Home	36 Notifications		EA Site Specific Assess	ment (SSA) VIC -				
Actio	ons 🗸			e Amendment Reque	est -			
ភំង	þ		Ethics Amendment F	Request VIC -				
Project	Duplicate Form	Form Status	Review	v Reference	Date	Modified	NMA	
Delete Form	Share	Not Submitted	N/A		22/04	/2020 16:17	Project is	not for NMA
Roles	Transfer Form	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Completeness Check	Submit	Site Gov	vernance	Amendm	nent Requ	est		✓ S
~	^	Section		Questions				

- Select Roles + button under the Action pane
- Enter the collaborator's ERM email address and select Post Approval/Authorisation Subform



Share Roles				
Sharing a form enabl with:	es others to view/edit the same fo	orm depending on the level of a	ccess you give them.	Please select the users you wish to share this form
Collaborator email		Post Approval/A	uthorisation Subform	s 🗸 🕂

- Other collaborators can be added by selecting to button
- Select Share Role Share Role
- The collaborator receives an email notification on their assigned role in the project
- The collaborator at the site can view the Site Governance Amendment Request and associated documents

15.4 Applying signatures

The Principal Investigator is required to sign the declaration page to indicate the information is complete and correct. To request an electronic signature:

Act	ions	Site Covernance Amendment Request 7					
(e) Previous) Next	Site Governance Amendment Request -					
1	÷	Declaration					
Navigate	View as PDF	Declaration of Principal Investigator					
Ø	18	The information provided is complete and correct.					
locuments	Signatures	The project is being conducted in keeping with the conditions of approval of the reviewing HREC (and subject to any changes subsequently approved).					
L Save	Share	The project is being conducted in compliance with the National Statement on Ethical Conduct in Human Research (NHMRC, 2007) and Safety Monitoring and Reporting in Clinical Trials Involving Therapeutic Goods (NHMRC, 2016), or as amended.					
1 +	59	Request Signature Sign					

ling and a second second second

- The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections
- Enter the signatory's ERM email address and message

Request a signature	×
Enter the email address of the person you want to sign this form	
Email Address	
Can you please sign the Site Governance Amendment Request form	
Request	se

- The requested signatory will receive an email notification for a signature, a message and link to ERM Login/Signatures page
- The signatory logs into ERM
- From the Work Area the signatory selects the Signatures tile to open the request



Select Request

⊨КМ Ар	plications Hom	e Contacts Help	÷					
W	ork Area 🐱	Mork Arc	12					
A 1		Work Area						
Home	Notifications	General						
ŀ	Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared			
Create Folder D	Delete Folder Create Project	1	1	0	0			
Oelete Project	Duplicate Transfer	Folders)				

- View Form to review the Site Governance Amendment New requests are highlighted. Select View Form . Request form
- For endorsement of the form, select **Sign** button under the Actions pane •

A Sign Form text box is displayed The signatory enters their ERM log in details to sign the form Sign button Select Sign

Sign Form		×
Please enter your logi	n details in order to sign this form:	
Username	Password	
		Sign Close

- The applicant receives an email notification indicating the signature request has been accepted, i.e. the form has been signed
- The form is ready for submission

15.5 Submission and review

- Navigate to the Actions pane and select the **Submit** button
- The system performs a completeness check to highlight any incomplete sections. If complete the form is • ready to be submitted
- Submit / Select Submit button
- The post authorisation form will be received by the organisation's RGO. . How to respond to queries and requests from the RGO is described in Submission and review process - SSA <u>form</u>



16 Other ERM features

16.1 Project update

- Only the project owner may update a project
- Approved forms retain the version they were approved in
- Forms and sub-forms that have been submitted or under review will also be updated
- Forms with electronic signatures applied but not submitted should be **updated after submission** otherwise updating will invalidate electronic signatures

How to update to a newer version

- Print and save a copy of any unsubmitted forms before the project is upd ated to ensure no data is lost
- The Update prompt is viewed by the project owner at the top of the form
- The project owner clicks on the Update link

HREA		
	Note: There is a newer version of the project. Update	
Team Member Details		

- A pop-up message displays information about electronic signatures on <u>unsubmitted</u> forms which will be invalidated if a project is updated
- Select the Update button to update the project

Update Project	×
Note: This will update all the forms within this project. Any electronic signatures on unsubmitted forms will be invalidated – NOTE updating does not invalidate signatures on submitted forms	
Update Description	
There is a newer version available.	
Update	lose

- Notification of the project update will appear in the Notifications tile
- From the Work Area select the Notifications tile. Select the relevant message



Notif	ications	
Search		
Start	End	
Display	Please note that only the specified number of notifications will show after searching.	tifications
	Search	
	Message	♦ Attachment ♦ Project Sl
	 Your May HREA has been upgraded 	None May HREA

• A Message box will be displayed informing the project owner of the upgrade

Mes	sage		×
	Project Sho	rt Title	
	Date	17/02/2020 10:56	
	Your ha	s been upgraded	
			Close

- If the completion of a form is in progress, select the **Completeness Check** button under the Actions pane to check if additional data entry is required as the new version may introduce additional questions into the form
- An Update prompt is also seen by collaborators and form owners should advise the project owner of any need to delay the Update e.g. if the form owner is working on a form with un-submitted electronic signatures

Note: There is a newer version of the project. (Please contact the project owner to update this form).

When should the project be updated?

- Before you request electronic signatures
- After a form has been submitted and validated by the Research Office
- When the project has been released back to the applicant for edits after the submission
- After form approval

What are the steps in a multi-site project?

- The project owner should advise all form owners of when the project update will occur
- · Form owners should advise the project owner if the Update needs to be delayed
- Print and save a copy of any un-submitted forms before the project is updated
- The project owner updates the project

How to find the form version

- The form version appears at the top right-hand corner of the screen when the form is open
- The most recent date a form has been edited is displayed under Date Modified below the Project Tree



16.2 Cancel a signature

A **Request Sent** message is displayed at the top of the screen whenever an electronic signature has been made. The form is locked through signature requests. To cancel a signature:

Move to the Signatures tab and select the Cancel button under the Action heading

ភំ	C)	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA	
Project	Duplicate Form	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	05/04	/2021 16:23	Project is for NM	A
Share	Roles	Navigation	Documents Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History	
Transfer Form	Completeness Check	Signatures						
t	8	Note: There are no act	ive signatures on this form					
Submit	NMA Project	Signature Requ	uests					
View as PDF	Correspond	Туре	Signatory Email	R	equested Date	Status	Response Date	Action
non as r br	Concopona	Principal Investigator	amanda.walpole@dhhs.vic.	gov.au 05	5/04/2021 16:23	Requested		Cancel

- The form is now unlocked and signatures invalidated. The Status has changed from Requested to Recalled
- The signatory will also receive a notification email regarding the signature cancellation
- If a Principal Investigator has signed signed their own form directly, their signature can also be cancelled
- To cancel the signature, open the relevant form at any question and select the **Unlock** button under the Actions pane



- An Unlock Form text box will be displayed. Select Confirm
- The signature has been cancelled (invalidated) and the form is unlocked.

16.3 Changing jobs

If an applicant changes jobs or moves to another organisation but remains a collaborator on certain projects, the applicant can continue to access their projects in ERM but will need to have their ERM account details updated. Contact Infonetica Helpdesk to update the account details and email.

If a project owner is leaving the project permanently, the project should be transferred to another collaborator in the research team.



16.4 Transfer a project

The project owner can use the **Transfer** function to permanently transfer a project to another ERM user. This may be when a Sponsor creates an HREA application then transfers it permanently to the CPI or when the project owner intends to leave the project and transfers project responsibilities to another collaborator in the research team.

If the current project owner is unable to be contacted, contact <u>Infonetica Helpdesk</u> for further assistance to permanently transfer a project.

 \sim

- From the Work Area, select the **Transfer** button from the Actions pane
- A **Transfer Projects** text box is displayed noting loss of future access to the project
- The project owner enters the ensuing project owner's ERM email address
- Enter a message to the new project owner (optional)
- Select the correct project from the list
- Select Transfer button
- All forms are locked pending the transfer
- The new project owner will receive an email notification regarding the transfer of the project

Cancel a transfer request

The project owner can cancel the transfer request if the request has **not** been accepted by the new project owner.

In the Project Overview screen display under the Transfers tab, select the Cancel
 Cancel
 Cancel

Work Area	Project Ove	erview - HR	REA 27				
	HREA 27 HREA Site Specif	fic Assessment (SSA) VIC - A	dministrator Use Only				
	Transfers			Forms Submitted Documents	Transfers Hit	itory	
	Transfers						
	Transfer Id	From User	To User	Requested Date	Status	Response Date	Action
	3160	You	Ms Amanda Walpole	27/12/2019 12:39	Requested	N/A	Cancel
							\square

• A message indicating the transfer request has been successfully cancelled will be displayed

Jobs

Precincts and Regions

Email	Address	
	a manager to describe	
inter	a message (optional)	
	52902	March 25 project
Ó)	53715	Test Practice 1
	55579	21st HREA
0	55663	June MDF
	55998	July HREA
	57465	September HREA (2)
	57470	september mdf (3)
	57570	HREA September
	57730	September MDF
	57840	September LARF
0	57937	MDF
	58064	HREA 16 September

button

Transfer Projects

				quest cancelled succes	sfully			
Home 21	Project Tree 🗸							
	HREA 27 HREA Site Spec	cific Assessment (SSA) VIC	- Administrator Use Only					
			Forms	Submitted Documents	Transfers	History		
	Transfers							
	Transfer Id	From User	To User	Requested Dat	te	Status	Response Date	Action
	3160	You	Ms Amanda Walpole	27/12/2019 12:	39	Requested	N/A	Cancel

Accept a transfer

The new project owner will receive an email notification to log into their ERM account



- In the Work Area, select the Transfers tile
- A list of all transfers will be displayed. In the relevant message line, select View Project is to open the project as read only

Transfe	rs							
Search Transfer	'S							
Transfer Id 🍦	Project Title	From User	To User 🔅	Message	Requested Date 💡	Response Date	Status 🕴	Action
5003	HREA 02	Ms Catherine Farrington	You		05/04/2021 16:39		Requested	View Project
3177	My second HREA	Ms Catherine Farrington	You	please accept this transfer	07/01/2020 08:38	07/01/2020 09:15	Accepted	View Project

To accept the transfer, select the Accept Transfer button from the Actions pane .

Act	tions	HREA 02				7!
Project	Completeness Check	Project Tree 🗸				
Refresh	Accept Transfer	HREA 02				
Reject Transfer	View as PDF	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
\times		Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	02/04/2021 18:08	Project is for NMA
Correspond						

- An Accept Transfer text box is displayed Accept Transfer Select Yes to accept the transfer Are you sure that you want to perform this action? Yes No
- Ownership of the project is transferred including all sub-forms e.g. SSAs and associated documents. The new owner can access the project from their Work Area.
- The new owner can assign other research members pre-defined levels of access to the project and forms



16.5 Transfer a sub-form

A form owner can transfer sub forms e.g. SSAs to another collaborator independently from the main project.

For the form transfer to be successful, the intended owner must first be given access to the form. Use **Roles +** to allow the new form owner to also view the HREA (*look up the project branch*).

Acti	ons	Project Tree 🗸						74
Project	Duplicate Form							
O Delete Form	Create Subform		Site Specific Assess		Administrator Use Only			
Share	Roles		nics Amendment Red					
Iransfer Form	Completeness Check	Action Required	Status	1	Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
	0	Yes	Not Su	bmitted	N/A	05/04	/2021 16:53	Project is for NMA
Submit	Refresh							
8	•	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History

- Select Transfer Form Transfer Form button under the Actions pane
- A Transfer Form To Another User text box will be displayed
- Select the **Transfer Sub Forms** checkbox to include other subforms that are associated with the form e.g. a Site Progress Report
- Select Transfer

• A Transfer successful message will be displayed at the top of the screen.

- The collaborator will receive an email notification informing them of the transfer with a link to ERM and becomes the new form owner including the owner of any associated subforms
- The new form owner is shown under the Collaborators tab
- The new form owner can assign other collaborators access to the form using the Share function
- The collaborators can only view the HREA if the Project Owner assigns access from the HREA using the

Roles + function

16.6 Duplicate a project

In ERM, an existing project can be duplicated regardless of whether the project has been submitted or not. Subforms can also be duplicated in this process.

• From the Work Area select Duplicate Project

	Work Area 🐱	Work Are	2						
#	21	WORK ALE	a						
Home	Notifications	General							
	Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared				
Create Folde	ar Delete Folder Create Project	21	0	0	24				
Delete Proje	ct Duplicate Project Transfer	Folders							
		Old Applications	Approved project						
		8	2						



- A **Duplicate Project** textbox will be displayed
- Select the project to be duplicated
- Enter a new title for the project and delete the previous project's ID number
- Select Include sub forms (SSAs) if subforms are also to be duplicated
- Select Duplicate
- The duplicate project with the new title will be displayed under Project Title

Work Area V	Work Area									
Home Notifications	General	General								
Actions 🛩	Notifications Signatures Transfers	Shared								
Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	23 0 0	24								
Delete Project	Folders									
	Old Applications Current projects									
	7 2									
	Projects									
	Search Projects									
	Project Title	🕴 Project ID 🚽 Owner	Date Created Date Modified							
	HREA 09	60952 Ms Catherine Farrington	09/01/2020 11:08 09/01/2020 11:09							
	HREA 08	60889 Ms Catherine Farrington	07/01/2020 12:40 07/01/2020 12:44							

- If subforms have been duplicated, information in the form is also duplicated but will require certain details to be re-entered e.g. Project title and name of site/organisation
- The duplicate function will not copy documents (protocol, PICFs), signatures and permissions (**Roles+**, **Share**) that have been assigned to the original project
- Upload supporting documents and assign other members of the research team pre-defined levels of access to the duplicated project using the **Roles +** or **Share** function.

16.7 Duplicate a form

Subforms can be duplicated using a similar duplicate function and can be useful for duplicating SSAs.

The duplicate function will copy all answers in the form but **not** copy documents e.g. site PICFs, signatures and permissions assigned to the original subform. As the SSA site/organisation name will also be duplicated it is important to amend these details for each duplicated SSA.

• In the Project Tree highlight the subform to be duplicated

Acti	ons	Project Tree 🗸						74
Project	Duplicate Form	• <u>HREA31</u>						
Delete Form	Create Subform		Site Specific Assess Site Governance A Sice Amendment Rec Specific Assessme	Amendment Reque	Administrator Use Only		-	
Transfer Form		Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date	Modified	NMA
£	2	Yes	Not Su	bmitted	N/A	05/04	/2021 16:53	Project is for NMA
Submit	Refresh							
8	-	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History



Duplicate Project

60889 - HREA 08

Please enter a new title HREA 09

Include sub forms:

Select a Jurisdiction Victoria

ase select project that you wish to duplicate

Duplicate Close

• Select **Duplicate Form** button under the Actions pane

Ð

 Duplicate Form
 ×

 Duplicate the current sub form with data.

 Number of duplicates required:

 Image: Complex and the process can take a while.

- A Duplicate Form textbox will be displayed
- Select number of duplicates required e.g. 2
- Select Duplicate
- The duplicated subforms will be displayed in the Project Tree

Acti	ons	Project Tree 🗸				74
Project	Duplicate Form	• HREA 31				
Delete Form	Create Subform	Site	e Governance Amendment Request VIC -			
Share	Roles		cific Assessment (SSA) VIC - cific Assessment (SSA) VIC -		Duplicate SSA	
Transfer Form	Completeness Check	<u>Site Spe</u>	cific Assessment (SSA) VIC -		Duplicate SSA	
<u></u>	3	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Submit	Refresh	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	05/04/2021 16:5	53 Project is for NMA

- Select the duplicate SSA in the Project Tree then select the Location hyperlink to be directed to Q 1.4 Name of site/organisation
- Select the relevant site/organisation name from the drop-down list



• The correct site/organisation will be displayed with the SSA in the Project Tree

Acti	ons	Project Tree 🗸				7
Project	Duplicate Form	HREA 31 HREA				
Delete Form	Create Subform		Specific Assessment (SSA) V e Governance Amendment Re mendment Request VIC -			
Share	Roles		ecific Assessment (SSA) VIC			
Transfer Form	Completeness Check		ecific Assessment (SSA) VIC	<u>.</u>		
1	3	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA
Submit	Refresh	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	05/04/2021 17:16	Project is for NMA

• Upload supporting documents and assign other members of the research team pre-defined levels of access to the duplicated form using the **Roles +** or **Share** function.



16.8 Delete a form

•

The applicant can delete a subform if it has been created unnecessarily and can only be performed if the form has **not** been submitted.

• In the Project Tree highlight the subform which needs to be deleted

	Actions	S	Project Tree 🗸				74
		Duplicate Form)			
	Delete Form C	Create Subform	•	Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VII			
		Roles		aics Amendment Request VIC -			
		npleteness Check	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	ММА
	<u></u>	Refresh	Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	05/04/2021 16:53	Project is for NMA
	0	_	Navigation	Documents Signature	s Collaborators	Submissions Correspondence	History
D		e tout b		und		Delete Form Delete form Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VI	
	elete Form	n text b	ox is displa te the form	yed			
Sele	elete Form oct Delete t	n text b to dele	ox is displa te the form	yed fan electronic sig	nature request h	Delete form Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VI	C7
ele he	elete Form ct Delete t subform ca	n text b to dele can still	ox is displa te the form be deleted i een signed t	fan electronic sig		Delete form Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VI	C? Delete
ele he	elete Form oct Delete t subform ca If the form the Action	n text b to dele an still n has be ns pane	ox is displa te the form be deleted i een signed b	fan electronic sig	pen the form and	Delete form Site Specific Assessment (SSA) VI as been made.	C? Delete

16.9 Edit access permissions using Roles and Share

A collaborator's level of access to a form can be changed in two ways depending on whether Roles +

Share has been used to assign access.

<

- To determine the method used, highlight the relevant form in the Project Tree and move to the **Collaborators** tab
- The collaborators are listed with their assigned level of access
- The Edit Permissions in black indicate the Share action was used and those greyed out indicate the Roles+ action was used



Roles Or

Act	ions	Action Required	Status	Review Reference	Date Modified	NMA		
		Yes	Not Submitted	N/A	03/02/2021 12:56	Project is not for NMA		
Project	Create Subform							
<	2+	Navigation	Documents Signa	collaborators	Submissions Corresponden	ce History		
Share	Roles							
	<u>1</u>	Collaborators						
Check		Name	Access			Edit Permissions		
Check	-	Prof Ann Researcher	Read			Edit Permissions	←	Share action used
	View as PDF	Prof M. Happy	Project Ow	ner and Form Owner		Edit Permissions	٦	
\times	4	Ms Victoria Trainer	Read, Crea	ate all sub forms, Receive notifica	ions	Edit Permissions		Roles + action used

Roles +

- Highlight the relevant form in the Project Tree and select the Roles + button under the Actions pane
- A Share Roles textbox will be displayed showing the form's level of access that has been assigned to the collaborator e.g. HREA read only
- Select Remove

Share Roles						2
Sharing a form enables others to vi	ew/edit the same form depending on the level of access	s you give them. Please select the us	ers you wish to share this form w	ith:		
Collaborator email		HREA Share (read-only)		• 🛨		
Name	Role	Given on	Remove	Remove All Permissions		
Ms Amanda Walpole	HREA Share (read-only)	HREA	Remove	Remove		
					Share Role	Close

- The Share Roles page stays to allow the level of access to be modified
- Enter the collaborator's ERM email address and new level of access e.g. read, create subforms
- Select Share Role

Share Roles			×
Sharing a form enables others to viewiedit the same form depending on the level of ac	ccess you give them. Please select the users you wish to share this form with:		
Collaborator email	HREA Share (read-only)	• +	
Note: This form has not yet been shared with anyone	HREA Share (read-only) HREA Share (read, write)		
Entropological del construction del construction del del construction de la construction de la construction del	HREA Share (read, create subforms) HREA Share (read, write, submit)		
		Share Role	Close

• The collaborator will receive an email notification informing them of the change in their access level

Share

- Highlight the relevant form in the Project Tree and move to the Collaborators tab
- Select the Edit Permissions button and Edit Permissions textbox will be displayed
- Select the additional level of permissions e.g. Create all subforms, Receive notifications and select **Save** Save
- The collaborator will receive a message in the **Notifications** tile (under the Work Area) informing them of the change in their access level.

Edit Permissions - Prof Ann Researcher	×
×	
Read	
0	
Write	
Submit	
Share	
8	
Create all sub forms	
8	
Receive notifications	
Sav	Close



16.10 Contacts

The **Contacts** area can be used to save and edit contact details for project team members. Details saved in **Contacts** can be used to populate all ERM forms.

Add a Contact

• Select Contacts above Work Area



• Select + Add Contact

\	Work Area 🐱	Contacts	+ Add Co	ntact			
Home	18 Notifications	Search Contacts					
		Title 🕴 First Name	Surname	Organisation	Address 1	City Telephone	Email Delete
		Abigail	Cooper				Delete

- A New Contact textbox will be displayed to enter the new details
- Select Save button
- New contact details will be displayed under Contacts

Work	Area 🗸	Contac	rts	+ Ada	d Contact					(
#	0	Contac		Aut	a contact					
Home	Notifications	Search Co	ontacts							
		Title 🍦 I	First Name 🕴	Surname 🕴	Organisation 🕴	Address 1 🌢	City	Telephone 🕴	Email	Delete
		Prof 1	Major	Researcher	Best Place		Best Town	03 8888 8888	major.researcher@google.com	Delete

• Contacts can also be added when completing a form

Select Add to contacts
 Add to contacts
 button

	Actions 🗸		HREA	5
Previous) Next	1 Navigate		
÷	D	12	Team Member Details	
Print	Documents	Signatures	 National Statement 1.1 (e) states: "Research that has ment isconducted or supervised by persons or teams with experience, qualifications and competence that are appropriate for the research." 	
Save	Share	L+ Roles	 In establishing the research team you should ensure there is appropriate and sufficient expertise to undertake all the research activities. Ensure that you list who is undertaking the research activities and default here repertise, qualifications and competence in the following section. Where research will involve team members who are currently unknown (e.g. a future class of students) this should be recorded in the Project. Description Protocol and the supervisor should complete this section of the HREA as the researcher/investigator. 	
<u>In</u>	s Completeness Check	s Submit		
			Please refer to the information icon 👔 and read the guidance for Q1.9.1-Q1.9.13 prior to completing the questions in the following section.	
			Project Team	
				contact
			Q1.9.1 Title	Save Cori
			Doctor	
			Q1.9.2 First Name	
			John	



New Contact

• The details will be saved in the **Contacts** area for future use in other forms

Insert Contact in a form

.

• Contact details can be inserted automatically when completing Team Member Details in a form

	Actions 🗸		
(E) revious) Next	Navigate	Please refer to the information icon 👔 and read the guidance for Q1.9.1-Q1.9.13 prior to completing the questions in the following section.
Print	Or Documents	Signatures	Project Team
L Save	Share	Roles	Q1.9.1 Title
aborators	Completeness Check	Submit	Doctor Q1.9.2 First Name
			John

- A Contacts text box will be displayed to insert the relevant contact
- Select insert button

Search Contacts								
	Title	First Name	Surname	Organisation	Address 1	© City	Telephone	Email
Insert	Doctor	John	Smith					
Insert	Professor	David	Jones					

Contact details will be successfully loaded into the form

	Actions ~		Add Another Remove
۲		1	
Previous	Next	Navigate	Load Add to contacts
÷	Ø	O	Project Team
Print	Documents	Signatures	Q1.9.1 Title
	<	2+	Professor
Save	Share	Roles	Q1.9.2 First Name
2	~	<u> </u>	David
Collaborators	Completeness Check	Submit	Q1.9.3 Surname/family name
			Jones
			Q1.9.4 Email Address

16.11 Correspondence

To the Research Office

The applicant can use the **Correspond** function to communicate with the reviewing organisation's Research Office and should be used **after** a form has been submitted to the reviewing organisation.

Correspond must <u>not</u> be used to respond to a query or information request.

Select the **Correspond** button from the Actions pane to open communication with the designated Research Office.

A Correspond text box will display where the message will be delivered to



• Enter message details and attach documents if required

Correspond	>
Note: This message will be delivered to members of VICTest1.	
Channen Elkins, No film chonen	
	Send Close

- Select Send
- A record of the correspondence can be accessed in the Correspondence tab

V	Nork Area	•	January Project	:t					5
Home	19 Notifications		Project Tree V						
	Actions 👻		January Project						
Project	Create Sub- form	Share	• HREA						
1+		<u>1</u>	Form Status	Review Reference	Applicatio	n Type	Date Modified	N	AN
Roles	Completeness Check	Submit	Not Submitted	N/A	N/A		14/02/2019 09:06	Pr	oject is for NMA
Refresh	S NMA Project	View as PDF	Navigation	Documents	Signatures Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence History		
Correspond	Simport Xml		Correspondence	+ Ne					
			Search correspondence						
			User		Date #	Message			Attachment
			Ms Catherine Farrington		14/02/2019	See attached CV for Dr Jone	s		Ø

From the Research Office

- At times the Research Office may use their Correspondence function to communicate with the applicant. It is <u>not</u> used by the Research Office to query or request clarification relating to an application
- The applicant will receive an email notification regarding the new correspondence with a link to the relevant project. Click on the link provided

⊡ ७ ८ ↑ ↓ •	Correspondence regarding HBEA 06 - Message (HTML)							
File Message Help HPE Content Manager	Q Tell me what you want to do							
Thu 3001/2020 3:20 PM donotreply@infonetica.net Correspondence regarding HREA 06 © Catherine Farrington (DH95)	~							
Dear Catherine, Project Title: HREA 06 Project ID: 60871 Application: HREA								
The VICTest1 research office has sent correspondence to you in ERM. The correspondence contains important information regarding the review of your application.								
To view your correspondence, click on the follow link: https://au.forms.ethicalreviewmanager.com/								
This is a system-generated email. Please do not	reply.							

• Select the **Correspondence** tab to display a Correspondence list

1	Work Area	~	HREA 06						
Home	26 Notifications		Project Tree 🗸						
	Actions 🗸		O HREA 06						
Project	Create Sub-	Share	O HREA						
2+	÷	\times	Form Status	Review Refere	nce				Date Modified
Roles	Print	Correspond	Submitted	HREC/60871/V	CTEST-2020-198801	(v1)			07/01/2020 08:53
mport Xml	Recall			Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence
			HREA Section Que	estions					

• Select the relevant message



	Vork Area	*	HREA 06						
Home	26 Notifications		Project Tree V						
Project	Create Sub- form	Share	• HREA						
2+	÷	\times	Form Status	Review Refer	rence				Date Modified
Roles	Print	Correspond	Submitted	HREC/60871/	VICTEST-2020-198801	(v1)			07/01/2020 08:53
mport Xmi	Recall			Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence
			Correspondence		+ New Corr				
			User	Date	Mes	sage	×		
			Review user	30/01/2020	Hi Cat	herine, Thanks for submi	tting your application. It lo.		

• A Correspondence Message textbox will display details of the message

Correspondence Message	×
Date 30/01/2020 2:19 PM	
HI Catherine. Thanks for submitting your application. It looks great! The committee are really looking forward to reviewing it at their meeting! from your filendly research office	
Note: No correspondence attachments	
	Close

16.12 Archived documents

When an application requires resubmission with new document versions, deleted documents are automatically archived in ERM. Archived documents can be accessed in the Project Overview screen

• Highlight the project title in the Project Tree and move to the Submitted Documents tab

Project (Overviev	w - HREA	08							
Project Tree 🗸										
	Specific Assessmen	t (SSA) VIC - Administrati e (VSM)	or Use Only							
				Forms Submitted Documents	Transfers	History				
Submitted Do	ocuments									
Search forms docume	nts									
Form Reference) Form name	Submission Date	Status Sta) Туре	0	Name	 Version 	Size 0	View	0 Archived
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Archived	Protocol		December Holidays protocol	1	11.5 KB	Download	2
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Submitted	Protocol		December Holidays protocol version 2	2	11.6 KB	Download	
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Archived	PARTICIPANT INFORMATION AND CONSENT FO	RM (TRACKED)	PICF Master December 2019	1	11.9 KB	Download	2
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Submitted	PARTICIPANT INFORMATION AND CONSENT FO	RM (TRACKED)	PICF Master December 2019. Version 2	2	12.0 KB	Download	

- The Status for current document versions is <u>Submitted</u> and previous/deleted versions are now <u>Archived</u>
- When the application has been approved, the Status of the submitted documents is Approved
- Select **Download** Download button to view an archived document



Project	Overviev	w - HREA	08								
	Specific Assessment	nt (SSA) VIC - Administra le (VSM)	tor Use Only								
				Forms	Submitted Documents	Transfers	History				
Submitted D			\frown								
Form Reference	Form name	Submission Date		Туре		4	Name	Version		View	Archived
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Submitted	Protocol			December Holidays protocol version 2	2	11.6 KB	Download	
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Submitted	PARTICIPANT IN	FORMATION AND CONSENT FO	RM (TRACKED)	PICF Master December 2019. Version 2	2	12.0 KB	Download	
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Archived	Protocol			December Holidays protocol	1	11.5 KB	Download	
HREA	HREA	17/01/2020	Archived	PARTICIPANT IN	FORMATION AND CONSENT FO	ORM (TRACKED)	PICF Master December 2019	1	11.9 KB	Download	×

• Other collaborators with assigned access can also view archived documents

16.13 Folders

All applications are listed together in the Work Area home page. Folders can be created to organise applications accordingly.

• Select Create Folder Deter button under the Action pane

Work Area マ	Work Are	а			
Home Notifications	General				
Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared	
Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	19	0	0	15	
Delete Project Duplicate Project	Folders				
	Old Applications				
	8				

- A Create Folder text box will be displayed Enter Folder title e.g. Approved project
- Select Create



• A new Folder tile (Approved project) is displayed in the Work Area under **Folders**

Work Area マ	Work Are	a					
Home Notifications	General						
Actions 🗸	Notifications	Signatures	Transfers	Shared			
Create Folder Delete Folder Create Project	19	0	0	15			
Delete Project	Folders				New Folder ti		
	Old Applications	Approved project			New Folder li	ie	
	8	0		L			
	Projects						
	Search Projects						
	Project Title	Projec Pro	ct ID 🗸 Owner		Date Created	Date Modified	0 Transfer Status
	QA January	51369	Ms Cather	rine Farrington	06/02/2019 18:05	06/02/2019 18:05	
	LARF January	51368	Ms Cather	rine Farrington	06/02/2019 17:00	06/02/2019 17:31	

- Applications listed under Projects can be moved to the new folder using 'drag and drop'
- Select the Folder tile to display the list of projects moved to the Folder

Work Area 🗸	Work Area
Home Notifications	General
Actions 🛩	Notifications Signatures Transfers Shared
reate Folder Delete Folder Create Project	19 0 0 15
elete Project Duplicate Project	Folders
	Old Applications Approved project
	8 1
	Projects QAJanuary \$1369 Ms Catherine Farrington 06/02/2019 18:05 06/02/2019 18:05
	Search Projects
	Project Title
	QA January 51369 Ms Catherine Parrington 06/02/2019 18.05 06/02/2019 18.05
	LARF/January' 51368 Ms Catherine Parnington 06/02/2019 17:00 06/02/2019 17:31

• Select a project to display the application and associated forms

Work Area 🐱			Approved project Projects					
Home	19 Notifications		Search Projects					
	Actions v		Project Title	 Project ID 🗸	Owner 🕴	Date Created	- 0	Date Modified
	Actions 🗸		QA January	51369	Ms Catherine Farrington	06/02/2019 6:05:20 PM		06/02/2019 6:05:22 PM
Create Project	Delete Project	Duplicate Project	MDF January Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries	51345	Ms Catherine Farrington	06/02/2019 12:13:53 PM		06/02/2019 12:30:53 PM
Rename	Hove Project	Transfer				019 Version 2.0.5.1 lions Privacy Policy		

Other Folder Actions



Delete Projec

Create a new project

Delete a project (only possible if the main form has not been submitted via ERM)



Delete a folder (only empty folders can be deleted)



Permanent transfer of a project to another user e.g. Sponsor creates the HREA and transfers it permanently to the CPI



Duplicate an existing project. Includes all forms in the project but **not** any attached supporting documents



Rename the tiles under Folders and enter a new name for the tile





Move a Project filed in **Folders** to the **Work Area.** The Project will be listed with other current projects under **Project Title**

16.14 Submission to non ERM Research Offices

For a submission to a HREC that does not use ERM e.g. Private hospital HREC, the HREA can be completed and printed as a pdf.

- Leave the last question in the ERM Filter Questions section (Select the Committee that your ethics application will be submitted to) blank
- Leave Q 4.3 (Select the Organisation that hosts the HREC) blank
- Select the **View as PDF** button under the Actions pane to generate a pdf of the form. Save the document to your local drive

Do not select Submit.

16.15 How to identify the Project Owner

In ERM, each project has an owner who has full access to manage all functions. If any research team member has access to any of the project forms e.g. the HREA or SSA, they will be able to identify the project owner.

The following steps outline how to identify the owner of a project in ERM.

- Log into ERM and select the project
- Select the relevant form in the Project tree e.g. the SSA and move to the Collaborators tab. The Project owner is identified as well as the SSA formowner.

Acti	ons							7
Project	Duplicate Form	Site S	<u>pecific Assessment (S</u>	<u>SSA) VIC -</u>				
0	0	Action Required	Status		Review Reference	Date Modi	fied	NMA
Delete Form	Create Subform	Yes	Not Submitte	d	N/A	05/04/2021	17:48	Project is not for NMA
Share	Roles	Navigation	Documents	Signatures	Collaborators	Submissions	Correspondence	History
Transfer Form	Completeness Check	Collaborators						
<u>1</u>	8	Name			Access		Edit Permissions	
	NMA Project	Prof Ann Researcher			Form Owner		Edit Permissions	
-	\times	Prof M. Happy			Project Owner		Edit Permissions	

• Click/tap on the project owner's name to display their ERM email address



17 Help

To access ERM

https://au.forms.ethicalreviewmanager.com/

For assistance

Infonetica Helpdesk:

02 9037 8404

0408 274 054

helpdesk@infonetica.net

Coordinating Office for Clinical Trial Research:

multisite.ethics@ecodev.vic.gov.au



Appendix 1: Application process flow

Ethical Review Manager (ERM)

Ethics and Research Governance/SSA





Appendix 2: Post approval & post authorisation chart

Ethical Review Manager (ERM)

Post-approval and Post-authorisation





Authorised by the Coordinating Office for Clinical Trial Research, Medical Research Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions 121 Exhibition Street Melbourne Victoria 3000 Telephone 0408 274 054

© Copyright State of Victoria, Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions 2021

Except for any logos, emblems, trademarks, artwork and photography this document is made available under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia license.

This document is also available in an accessible format at multisite.ethics@ecodev.vic.gov.au

